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Michael T. Napolitano Donald E. Gray, Jr.

MAYOR ACTING FINANCE
DIRECTOR
Department of Finance
B69 Park Avenue
Cranston, RI 02910-2738
(401) 461-1000
December 30, 2008

Honorable Mayor Michael T. Napolitano
and Memberts of the Cranston City Council
Cranston, Rhode Island

The Finance Department is pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of
Cranston, Rhode Island for the year ended June 30, 2008. The report includes the independent auditors’ report as
required by Rhode Island Statutes. The report is prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) and standards set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the management of the City. Management of the City is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal controls designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse
and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal controls are designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the calculation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgments by management. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are
accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner that presents fairly the financial position and results of
operations as measured by the financial activity of its various funds. All disclosures necessary 1o enable the reader
to gain an understanding of the City’s financial activities have been included.

Kostin, Ruffkess & Company, LLC, a public accounting firm fully licensed and qualified to perform audits of
municipalities within the State of Rhode Island, has audited the financial statements. The goal of the independent
audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Cranston, Rhode Island for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, are free of material misstatement. The independent andit involved examining, on a
fest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for
rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of Cranston’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2008, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). MD&A complement this
letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. MD&A. immediately follows the independent auditors
report.



The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally mandated “Single
Audif” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit
engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements,
but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special
emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports
are available in a separately issued document.

PROFILE OF THE CITY OF CRANSTON

The City was established as a City in 1754 and incorporated as a City in 1910. With a population of 81,479 as
determined by the Rhode Island Economic Development Corporation, the City is the third most populous
municipality in the State of Rhode Island (the “State”). Primarily a residential community, the City contains
many fine developments including Dean Estates, Glenwoods, Woodridge, Garden Hills, Garden City and
Comstock Gardens.

The City operates under a home rule charter adopted in 1962 (the “Charter”), providing for a mayor/council form
of government with a nine-member City Council headed by a Council President. The Charter vests all
legislative powers of the City in the City Council, including the ordering of any tax, the making of
appropriations and the transacting of any other business pertaining to the financial affairs of the City.

Cranston is located immediately south of Rhode Istand's Capitol. The City covers an area of almost 30 square
miles, stretching from Narragansett Bay in the east to the Town of Scituate in the west. It is bordered on the
north by Providence and Johnston and on the south by Warwick, West Warwick and Coventry.

The two main arteries that pass through the City are Routes I-95 and }-295. These interstate multi-lane
highways run north-south through the City. They provide direct access to Providence and other major cities such
as Boston (45 minutes north) and New York (3.5 hours south). Most of Rhode Island's hundreds of miles of
scenic coastline are within a half-hour’s drive. The City is also just minutes away from the State’s T.F. Green
Airport located in the City of Warwick.

Howard Industrial Park, located at the interchange of Interstate Route 95 and State Route 37, was the City's
major economic development success story of the 1970s and 1980s. This location is home to 38 companies with
a workforce of more than 3,000. Premiere national and international companies like Ross Simons and
Swarovski help to identify this area as one of the premier industrial parks in the State.

Cranston has one of the best educational systems in the state. It has well-maintained housing, modemn
recreational facilities and active civic organizations. Its reputation as a comfortable, prosperous city makes it
one of the most attractive areas in New England for both commercial and residential settlement.

Cranston is a city of contrasts. Heavily populated in the east, it remains largely rural in the west. Although
Cranston was incorporated as a city over 90 years ago, it never developed a true urban character, The
neighborhoods, which together constitute Cranston, maintain their rustic charm and separate small-town
warmth.

LOCAL ECONOMY

Population

Ranked third in population among the 39 cities and towns in the State in 2000, the City experienced a 4.2%
increase in population from 1990 to 2000.



LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

The City of Cranston places a high priority on economic development initiatives in order to solicit and secure
new businesses as well as give continual support to the improvement of the City’s present business community,
improving the City’s tax base and the employment opportunities for Cranston residents. The City has
successfully implemented aggressive business recruitment and expansion programs and has reinvested heavily
in its urban business corridors. Through a variety of forward thinking legislative initiatives, the City offers
comprehensive investment incentives to increase the viability of new and existing development areas.

The City has a commitment to the economic development in all of its available areas and strives to achieve a
balance between appropriate land use and bringing higher quality jobs and living standards to its residents. With
the assistance of the City's Department of Economic Development, the City has been a leader in bringing
industrial and commercial development to its numerous sites over the past decade. Convenient highway access,
ample water and sewer services, and a tradition of excellent municipal services combine to provide the type of
environment that the business community seeks when considering expansion or relocation.

Industrial Park

Western Cranston Industrial Area - Currently, this is not only Cranston’s but one of the State of Rhode Island’s

fastest developing industrial parks, located centrally in the State at an interchange of Interstate Route 295 and

Route 14. This area continues to develop as one of the most important parts of the City’s industrial tax base.

Nationally recognized companies like Con-Way Trucking, who operates a major new terminal on 13 acres, and

Bay State Florist, an international floral exporter, are just a few of the many industrial tenants that have been

attracted to this ever growing industrial area. Approximately 85 acres of fully serviced industrial land with
. excellent highway access remain available for development. ‘

Chapel View Shopping Center

Located directly across from Garden City, this new upscale mixed use shopping group, coupled with the many
high quality stores of its next door neighbor, will establish this area of Cranston as one of the leading shopping
centers of not only the State but the Southeastern New England region. Located on the former site of the State’s
Youth Training and Reform school, the developers have used a number of the former historic structures, all over
one hundred years old, to develop a European Village atmosphere that will have extensive upscale
condominiums, office space and retail components. Current tenants include Shaw’s Superstore Market, the
largest and newest for the food chain in this area, Omaha Steaks, REI sporting goods store and several
restaurants including Ted’s Montana Grill and Johnny Rockets. When completed, this area will be home to over
368,000 square feet of retail and living space.



LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING (CONTINUED)

Recent Development Initiatives

Cranston Parkade - The long awaited redevelopment of the 77-acre former Narragansett Brewery property is
completed. The Brewery Parkade has over 400,000 square feet of retail shopping area including such well-
known retailers as Lowe’s, Kmart, A.J. Wright, Super Stop & Shop, and several smaller stores. Phase I, the
office development phase, has begun with a new 120,000 square foot complex to house the national restaurant
chain, Texas Roadhouse, which has become a very successful facility. The developers completed a new state-
of-the art Police Headquarters and Municipal Court for the City of Cranston in June of 2007. Additional office
buildings are currently in the planning stages and seven acres of additional open space has been added with the
razing of the former Trolley Barn, which was part of the original Brewery Site. This substantial and visible
economic redevelopment effort along Route 10 is proving to be a catalyst for the redevelopment of other nearby
former industrial sites.

Western Cranston Office/Retail Development - Taking advantage of a vacant 100-acre parcel at the interchange
of Interstate Route 295 and State Route 14, the City revised its zoning of the site to approve the construction of a
200,000 square foot retail complex and a 300,000 square foot office park. The construction of the retail
component of this development is completed, and is anchored by a Wal-Mart department store. The office park
will offer corporate office clients a landscaped business environment in a campus-like setting. Two new banks
have recently been added to this development and 108 units of apartment housing are also nearing completion at
this site bringing together all of the latest components of mixed use development.

Citizens Bank Expansion - The Citizens Bank technology service center, located in the former Davol Company,
is already the City’s single largest office employer. Citizens Bank has continued its major expansion of 90,000
square feet and another 800 jobs at this Cranston facility. Located in close proximity to both the Chapel View
and the Garden City Shopping Centers, jt provides an excellent complement to the retail and service
establishments located nearby.

Tasca Ford Lincoln Mercury - Nationwide the largest Ford dealership, Tasca recently expanded its Regional
headquarters in Cranston. The project resulted in the redevelopment of some additional State property as well as
a vacant industrial building to create a state-of-the-art Ford Lincoln Mercury Dealership and Service Center that
is a model for other Ford dealerships throughout the United States.

Taco Manufacturing Expansion - A well known industrial/commercial valve and pump producer with
worldwide distribution, has recently undergone an expansion to increase the size of its facility from 40,000
square feet to over 200,000 square feet. The expansion allowed Taco to consolidate all of its operations to one
central location. This expansion is a further example of the revitalization of the Cranston Street area.

Relevant Financial Policies

The City’s financial policies have been applied consistently with the prior year and had no notable current year effect
on the financial statements. The State continues to struggle with balancing its budget. This has resulted in additional
pressure at the local level from reductions in state aid compounded by tax levy caps imposed by the state.



AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Cranston for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report.
This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the members of the Finance Department in the Division of
Accounting Control, Treasury and Tax Collection, Contract and Purchase, Assessment and Management
Information Systems for their diligence and cooperation on a daily basis in carrying out the duties and
responsibilities of this department. The success that the Finance Department has enjoyed is due to their efforts.

] want to extend the grateful appreciation of all Finance Department employees and to you, Mayor and members
of the City Council, for the confidence you have shown in us. ,

Sincerely,

Donald E. Gray, Jr.
Acting Director of Finance
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& COMPANY, LLC P ofax (860) 442-1124
Business Advisors and Certified Public Accountanis : Web: www. kostin.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Finance
City of Cranston, Rhode Island

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental aciivities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Cranston, Rhode
Island, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the City's
management. Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United Stafes. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
andit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Cranston, Rhode Island, as of June 30, 2008, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 30, 2008,
on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our andit.

The Management Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of Funding Progress - Cranston Retirement and OPEB
Systems and budgetary comparison information on pages 11 through 25 and pages 71 through 73, respectively,
are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain fimited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

2
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KOSTIN,
2 RUFFKESS

& COMPANY, LLC

City of Cranston, Rhode Island
Page Two

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Cranston, Rhode Island’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and the
accompanying financial information listed as supplemental schedules in the table of contents are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining
fund financial statements and other schedules as listed in the table of contents have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The infroductory section and
statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

o, L. 7 loping, e

New London, Connecticut
December 30, 2008
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Donald E. Gray, Jr.
ACTING FINANCE
DIRECTOR

Michael T. Napolitano
MAYOR

Department of Finance
869 Park Avenue
Cranston, Rl 02810-2738
{(401) 461-1000

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

As management of the City of Cranston, Rhode Island, we offer readers of the City of Cranston’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2008.

It is designed to assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues that the City has encountered.

Financial Highlights .

e The assets of the City of Cranston exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year ended June 30,
2008 by $9.1 million (ret assels).

e The City’s total net assets decreased by $2.1 million (or 18.8%). The governmental net assets
decreased by $3.4 million (or 11.9%) and the business-type net assets increased by $1.3 million (or

3.1%).

e+ The governmental activities revenue increased $3.8 million (or 1.6%) and the net results from activities
improved from prior year by $4.7 million. In 2008, the results of activities produced a decrease in net
assets of $3.4 million and in 2007 the results of activities produced a decrease in net assets of $8.1

million.

o The business-type activities revenue increased by $0.23 million (or 1.1%) and the net results from
activities improved from prior year by $0.25 million (or 25.0%). In 2008, the results of activities
produced an increase in business-type net assets of $1.25 million, while in 2007 the results of activities

produced an increase of $1.0 million in business-type net assets.

e The General Fund (the primary operating fimd) reflected on a current financial resource basis reports a
increase in fund balance of $3.4 million (or 18.4%), compared to an decrease of $1.3 million in the

prior year.

e The City’s total debt increased by $10.0 million. The increase is due primarily to the issuance of $16.1
million of new debt less the scheduled repayment of $5.8 million of outstanding debt.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets (Exhibit A) and the
Statement of Activities (Exhibit B) provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a
longer-term view of the City’s finances. For governmental activities, the fund financial statements tell how
these services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial
statements also report the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements by
providing information about the City’s most significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial
information about activities for which the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of
the government.

1



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Government Wide Financial Statements

Reporting the City as a Whole

One of the most important questions asked about the City’s finances is, “Is the City as a whole better off or
worse off as a result of the vear’s activities?” The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities
report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question.
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the
accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken
into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. These two statements report the City’s net assets and
changes in them. You can think of the City’s net assets, the difference between assets and liabilities, as one
way to measure the City’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s
net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to
consider other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the City’s property tax base, to assess the
overall health of the City.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Cranston that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The govermmental activities present the functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues. The governmental activities of the City include general government, public
safety, public works, public libraries, parks and recreation, education, senior services, community development,
and interest expense. The business-type activities of the City of Cranston include sewer utilities, the Public
Facilities Management Foundation, and the School Lunch Fund.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on Exhibits A and B of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City wses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a City’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the City’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

The City maintains 24 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances for the General Fund and School Department, both of which are considered to be major funds. Data
from the other 22 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data
for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in
this report.

Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, the City Council
establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes (like the construction
of the Briggs Farm recreational facility) or to show that it is meeting legal responsibility for using certain taxes,
grants and other money (like grants received from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development).

The City adopts an annual budget for its General Fund and School Department. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for each of them as required supplementary information to demonstrate compliance
with this budget.

Proprietary fands. The City of Cranston maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds
are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City of Cranston uses enterprise funds to account for its sewer operations, Public Facilities
Management Foundation, and its school lunch program. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions. The City of Cranston uses an
internal service fund to account for certain self-insured risks. Because this fund predominantly benefits
governmental rather than business-type functions, it has been included within governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the sewer utilities fund
and the Public Facilities Management Foundation, which are considered to be major funds of the City of
Cranston. The school lunch program fund is the sole nonmajor enterprise fund and is presented separately in
the proprictary fund financial statements. The internal service fund is also presented separately in the
proprietary fund financial statements.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits F, G, and H of this report.

Fiduciary fands. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs, The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits I, and J of this report.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

The notes to the financial statements can be found on Exhibit K of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning budgetary compliance schedules for the
General Fund and the Special Revenue Fund-School Unrestricted, as well as the City’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension and other post employment benefits to its employees. Required supplementary
information can be found following the notes.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are presented
immediately following the required supplementary information.
13



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds (Continued)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Statement of Net Assets

Included below is a condensed Statement of Net Assets for the City of Cranston. The condensed format allows
the reader to view the overall financial position of the City.

Condensed Statement of Net Assets

As of June 30
(In Millions)
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
‘ 2008 2007 2008 2007 008 2007
Assets:
Current and other assets ............ $56.7 $ 648 $ 134 $109 $ 70.1 $ 75.7
Capital a8Se18......ceeeeeeerceermrrrenens 121.8 112.3 69.5 70.6 191.3 182.9
TOLEL ASSELS ...oeeeevanerernrnrnns 178.5 177.1 82.9 81.5 261.4 258.6
Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities
OUtSTANINZ. oo eeceearemrrnees 185.8 176.2 36.2 36.3 2220 212.5
Other labililies ..ovceeereeeeeceenenes 24.4 292 5.9 5.6 303 34.8
Total liabilities ........c.oueeereen. 2102 205.4 421 41.9 2523 2473
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of debt oo sieces 27.7 28.5 69.3 63.8 88.0 92.3
Restricted ....c.oocvvvceemrvnrsnreennenns 32 2.5 0.5 1.0 3.7 3.5
Unrestricted...oovvivveeenieeererennns (62.6) (59.3) (20.0) (25.2) (82.6) {84.5)
Total net assets ..................... $31.7D $(28.3) $4028 $396 $91 $ 113

The composition of net assets and the changes in net assets over a period of time serves as a useful indicator of
the City’s financial position. The City’s total assets at June 30, 2008, exceed liabilities by $9.1 million. Of the
net assets, $(82.6) million are unrestricted net assets. The City’s net assets are comprised of $(31.7) million
from governmental activities and $40.8 million from business-type activities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Condensed Statement of Net Assets (Continued)

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt comprises $88.0 and $92.3 million of net assets at June 30, 2008
and 2007, respectively, This category reflects the total invested in capital assets (vehicles, equipment, etc.) net
of any related debt used to acquire capital assets. These capital assets are used to provide services to citizens
and do not represent resources available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets
is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided
from other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The second category of net assets, restricted net assets, represents net assets that are subject to external
restriction on how they may be used. Restricted net assets totaled $3.2 million for governmental activities and
$0.5 million for business-type activities. Restricted net assets in governmental activities consisted
predominantly of construction commitments for existing capital projects. Restricted net assets in business-type
activities consisted of cash reserves required by bond agreement totaling $0.5 million.

Normal Impacts

There are six basic (normal) transactions that will affect the comparability of the Net Assets summary
presentation:

Net Results of Activities - which will impact (increase/decrease) current assets and unrestricted net assets.
Borrowing for Capital - which will increase current assets and long-termn debt.
Spending Borrowed Proceeds on New Capital - which will reduce current assets and increase capital assets.

There is a second impact, an increase in invested in capital assets and an increase in related net debt which will
not change the invested in capital assets, net of debt.

Spending of Non-borrowed Current Assets on New Capital - which will (a) reduce current assets and
increase capital assets and (b) reduce unrestricted net assets and increase invested in capital assets, net of debt.

Principal Payment on Debt - which will (a) reduce current assets and reduce long-term debt and (b) reduce
unrestricted net assets and increase invested in capital assets, net of debt.

Reduction of Capital Assets through Depreciation - which will reduce capital assets and invested in capital
assets, net of debt.

Governmental Activities-Condensed Statements of Net Assets

The major component of the “Current and Other Assets” category is “Cash” of $24.5 million. This category is
also comprised of “Investments” of $7.2 million. “Cash” decreased $6.6 million due to operational needs of the
City. Investments decreased by $8.5 million due to the investment in capital assets and transfers to operating
cash accounts.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
Governmental Activities-Condensed Statements of Net Assets (Continued)

The long-term liabilities outstanding at fiscal year end was $193.3 million, of which $94.1 million consisted of
general obligation bonds, leases payable, and certificates of participation. The proceeds from these obligations
were used to fund various capital projects (such as school construction and playground construction and
improvements).

Total net assets at June 30, 2008 was comprised of unrestricted net assets of $(62.6) million with the balance
consisting of “Restricted” of $3.2 million and “Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt” of $27.7

million.

Business-Type Activities-Condensed Statements of Net Assets

For business-type activities, such as the Sewer Enterprise Fund, there are two major components of current and
other assets. Cash and cash equivalents of $5.9 million were available to support the current operations of the
Enterprise Funds. The remaining balance of current and other assets, $7.5 million, consists primarily of
receivables totaling $4.6 million, a lease payment receivable of $2.9 million and restricted cash of $0.5 million.

Long-term liabilities were comprised of $25.0 million of unearned revenues and $11.3 million for general
obligation bonds used to finance the capital operations of the Sewer Plant as well as SRF (state revolving fund)
loan from Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency. Other liabilities consisted primarily of the current
portion of unearned revenue of $2.3 million, $2.4 million of accounts payable, and $1.1 million for the current
portion of long-term bonds payable.

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt is the major component of net assets for business-type activities at
a total of $60.3 million. As stated above, in the government-wide analysis of the Statement of Net Assets, the
total of $0.5 million is for “Restricted Net Assets”. The balance of $(20.0) million comprises “Unrestricted Net
Assets”,

Statement of Activities

A condensed Statement of Activities for the City of Cranston is presented below listing the major categories of
revenues and expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007.

Condensed Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30 (In Millions)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for Services .ovvmmrnrrnnren $ 163 $ 16.8 $19.0 $19.1 $353  $359
Operating grants and contributions. 55.0 55.0 1.5 1.1 56.5 56.1
Capital grants and contributions..... 0.1 0.7 0.1 0.7
General Revenues:
Property taxes.......cnvvreererccriinnnns 169.3 162.0 169.8 162.0
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs...... 4.6 5.5 4.6 5.5
Unrestricted investment earnings ... 2.5 3.9 0.2 0.2 2.7 4.1
Total revenues..........ccveeeeeennnnn. 2478 243.9 20.7 20.4 269.0 264.3
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Statement of Activities (Continued)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2008 | 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
- Program Expenses:
General government .........coveerunnee $12.0 $ 14.7 $ $ $ 12.0 $ 14.7
Public safety ....oevvvcereervenernervrrcnnenns 65.5 69.8 65.4 69.8
Public Works ..ecoeeieciieieene 13.6 13.1 13.6 13.1
Education...oeveeeeeeercereeree s 1459 140.0 145.3 140.0
Parks and recreation ............cceeenenn. 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6
LAbraries. oo 3.2 3.1 32 3.1
SENIOr SEIVICES..oviviriiirnreererressenssssves 3.1 2.9 3.1 2.9
1811 SO URSON 33 32 33 3.2
Community development ............... 1.0 19 0.9 1.9
SEWEL v ves s anesanenas 16.2 16.2 16.2 16.2
Interest and other costs ... 4.3 3.9 43 39
Total expenses............ocoovevreeenn. 251.2 252.0 19.5 19.4 269.9 2714
Change in net assets ........................ (B4 (8.1) 1.2 1.0 (0.9) (7.1)
Net assets —July L.........ovceveereenen.. {28.3) {20.2) 39.6 38.6 11.3 18.4
Net assets — June 30, $(331.7) $(28.3) $40.8 $39.6 $ 104 $ 113

The Condensed Statement of Net Assets presents revenues, expenses and changes in net assets separately for
governmental activities and business-type activities. The condensed format allows for presentation of program
revenues {charges for services, operating grants and confributions, and capital grants and contributions)
followed by a listing of general revenues to support the City’s overall government or business-type activities.
Expenses are presented on a functional basis, with depreciation on capital assets directly allocated to the related
expense.

Governmental Activities-Condensed Statement of Activities

General revenues include all revenues not required to be reported as “program revenue”. The other “general
revenues” of $176.4 and $171.4 million includes $169.3 and $162.0 million in property taxes for the years
ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

“Program expenses” are presented in the Condensed Statement of Activities by function and total $251.2 and
$252.0 million (including interest on long-term debt) for the fiscal years June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

“Changes in net assets” increased $4.7 million to $(3.4) million from $(8.1) million for the years ended June 30,
2008 and 2007, respectively. The change resulted primarily from an increase in property tax revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Business-Type Activities — Condensed Statement of Activities

Business-Type Activities provided by the City of Cranston consists primarily of the operation of the wastewater
facility commonly know as the Sewer Enterprise Fund. The majority of revenues for this fund consist of
charges for services, In fiscal years 2008 and 2007, the City generated $19.0 and $19.1 million, respectively, in
charges for services for all of its business-type activities.

The total amount of expenses for business-type activities were $19.5 and $19.4 million, for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The “Change in Net Assets” resulted in an increase of $0.2 million to $1.2 million for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2008, as compared to $1.0 million for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007. The increase was due primarily
to an increase in “Operating Grants and Contributions™.

Financial Analvsis of City’s Funds

{xovernmenial Funds

The City of Cranston’s governmental funds consists of two major funds. The major funds are the City’s
General Fund and the School Department. Presented below is a condensed Balance Sheet for the two major
funds of the Governmental funds.

Combined fund balances for all the Governmental Funds was $31.6 million. Fund balance was comprised of
$27.8 miliion unreserved fund balances and $3.8 million reserved fund balances. Under the modified-accrual
basis for Fund Financial Statements, the emphasis is on accounting for current financial resources of the City.
Assets of $58.8 million include primarily $23.3 million in “Cash”, $7.2 million in “Investments”, $4.4 million
in “Taxes Receivable”, $9.2 million in “Intergovernmental Receivables”, $2.2 million “Due From Other
Governments”, “Advances” of $3.2 million, “Due from Other Funds” of $4.8 million, $.8 million in “Prepaid
assets and the remaining $3.7 million in “Other Current Assets”. Liabilities of $27.2 million consisted of $4.4
million in “Accounts Payable”, $1.5 million of “Accrued Liabilities”, $4.6 million in “Due to Other Funds”,
$9.3 million in “Unearned Revenue”, $2.5 million of “Claims Payable”, $1.6 million of other miscellaneous
liabilities and $3.2 million of Advances from other funds.

Condensed Balance Sheet

As of June 30
(In Millions)
General School Total Major
Fund Department Funds
2008 007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Assets:
Current and other assets........ $35.0 $32.1 $3.6 $4.3 $38.6 $36.4
Total assets...................... 35.0 32.1 3.6 4.3 38.6 36.4
Liabilities:
Other Habilities .cooccvreerneeennn 12.9 13.5 8.2 3.7 211 17.1
Total liabilities ................. 129 13.5 8.2 3.7 21.1 171
Fund Balance:
Reserved .o vevvecnecreennns 3.2 0.2 0.7 0.1 3.9 03
Unreserved.. o rnrnrenenes 18.9 18.5 (5.3) 0.5 13.6 19.0
Total fund balance........... $22.1 $18.7 $(4.6) $0.6 $17.5 $19.3
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Genperal Fund - Condensed Balance Sheet

The General Fund’s total assets of $35.0 million consists primarily of $15.2 million in “Cash”, $3.0 million of
“Investments”, $4.4 million of “Taxes Receivable” $6.9 million of “Intergovernmental Receivables”,
“Advances” of $3.2 million and amounts “Due from Other Funds” of $2.0 million.

Total liabilities for the General Fund were $12.9 million. “Accounts payable” amounted to $2.5 million, $7.0
million represented “Unearned Revenue”, $1.7 million in “Due to Other Funds™ and $1.8 million of accrued
liabilities.

The City’s unreserved fund balance was $18.9 million, at June 30, 2008.

School Department - Condensed Balance Sheet

The School Department’s total assets were $3.6 million. The majority of that consisted $1.4 million in
“Intergovernmental Receivables”, $0.8 million of “Prepaid assets”, and $1.4 of “Due from other funds™.

Liabilities for the School Department totaled $8.2 million. The majority of that consisted of “Other Liabilities™
of $1.1 million, $3.2 of advances from the general fund, “Accounts Payable” of $1.3 million and, $1.1 million
in “Claims Payable” and $1.5 million “Due to Other Funds”. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008, the
School Department had a fund balance of $(4.6) million. This was comprised of $0.7 million reserved fund
balance and $(5.3) million in unreserved fund balance. For the prior fiscal year ending June 30, 2007 the
School Department had a fund balance of $0.6 million that was comprised of an unreserved fund balance of
$0.5 million and reserved fund balance was $0.1 million.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

A condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the City of Cranston is
presented below listing the major categories of revenues and expenditures for the fiscal years ended June 30,
2008 and 2007. The major funds for the City of Cranston are the “General Fund” and the “School Department.”

The fund reporting format, also presented on a functional basis, presented in “Exhibit D - Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Governmental Funds” presents all revenue types
followed by the expenditures of the City. The fund financial statements report current year capital expenditures
and do not report depreciation on capital assets. Likewise, principal payments on long-term liabilities are
reported as current year expenditures and are not offset against the related long-term liability as within the
Government-Wide Financial Statements. The major source of revenues for the City comes from “General
Property Taxes”. For the years ending June 30, 2008, and 2007, the City collected $155.2, and $147.2 million
of property taxes, respectively. Total revenues for all major governmental funds for the years ended June 30,
2008 and 2007, were $222.8, and $216.9 million, respectively. For the major governmental funds, the total
expenditures for the years ending June 30, 2008, and 2007, were $239.9, and $232.9 million, respectively. For
the year ended June 30, 2008, General Fund revenues exceeded expenditures by $73.5 million before other
financing sources (uses) as compared to $69.4 million for the period ending June 30, 2007.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Condensed Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Continned)

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended June 30
(In Millions)
Total Major
General Fund School Department Govermnmental
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenues:
General Revenues;
PrOperty taXES ..oveeeerrerrmrearsrmemeeromnssssnenns $155.2 $1472 $ $ $155.2 $147.2
Intergovernmental........ccovmecieccnnen, 3.8 ‘9.9 433 427 52.1 52.6
Charges for se1vices ....oocevereereeneecrenens 11.5 11.4 16 2.1 13.1 13.5
Tnvestment INCOME..uvvvrirerrinrerrreranrerans 1.8 3.1 i.8 3.1
OHBET e irssbesssn e s eseesneesanens 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.6 0.5
Total reVEeRUES ........coeevvrereeeeeearecrnn 177.6 171.8 45.2 45.1 222.8 216.9
Expenditures:
Current:
General government ...o.oeveceeeernnnenenne 8.1 10.5 8.1 10.5
Public Safefy ...ooevermrreiec e 65.6 63.3 65.6 63.3
Public WOIKS oo ceereaeens 133 12.5 13.3 12.5
BEducation...cooeeveereirererresesereesssnereess 135.8 130.5 135.8 130.5
Parks and recreation ........ceecreeeeceneerne 2.1 2.0 2.1 2.0
Public BIbraries.....ccoovcvererevrcrveernernvines 3.1 3.0 3.1 3.0
Senior SEIVICES .oovviiviiiirinresssenresssnnens 2.9 2.7 29 2.7
9113 1=, USSR 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
Debt Service:
Principal....cocoeereecceecriniinnininnnas 5.0 4.5 5.0 4.5
Interest and other COSES ..uevvivmivirerenen. 3.8 3.7 3.8 3.7
Total expenditures..............vvonnnnn.. 104.1 102.4 135.8 130.5 239.9 2329
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures before other financing
SOUCES {USES).emreerenrrreveereimiesiisissereses 73.5 69.4 (90.6) (85.4) (17.1) (16.0)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Issuance of Debt . .oocoviviiiiiieeiieeiriens 4.0 490
Bond Premitm... .. ceeeeeccecemvecversesinerees 0.1 0.1
TTANSEETS M eeererreeereerreerrrserrsssineessnesaneas 12.4 13.9 85.4 84.5 97.8 98.4
Transfers Ot .. eenvireeeeeecevmsreseersrnnes (86.6) (84.5) {86.6) (84.5)
Net other financing sources (uses).. (70.1) (70.6) 85.4 84.5 153 13.9
Net change in fund balances................. 34 (1.2) (5.2) 0.9) (1.8) 2.1
Fund balance July 1 ............................ 18.7 19.9 0.6 1.5 19.3 214
Fund balance June 30 ........................... $ 221 $ 18.7 § (4.6) $ 06 $ 17.5 $ 193

20



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)

Review of Governmental Major Funds-Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances-General Fund

The City’s General Fund had revenues of $177.6 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. This was
comprised of $155.2 million in “General Property Taxes”, $8.8 million of “Intergovernmental” revenues, $11.5
million in “Charges for Services”, $1.8 million in “Investment Income™, and $0.3 million in “Other” revenue.

Expenditures for the General Fund for fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 were $104.1 million. These expenditures
consisted of $8.1 million in “General Government” expenditures, $65.6 million of “Public Safety” expenditures,
$13.3 million of “Public Works” expenditures, $2.1 million of “Parks and Recreation” expenditures, $3.1
million of “Public Libraries” expenditures, $2.9 million of “Senior Services” expenditures, $0.2 million of
“Other” expenditures, $5.0 million of “Debt Service Principal” expenditures, and $3.8 million of “Interest and
Other Costs™. :

In addition to general operating expenses, the General Fund also had “Net Other Financing Uses” of $(70.1)
million. This was composed of a $(86.6) million transfers out, of which $85.4 million was to the “School
Department”. This also included $12.4 million in “Transfers In” from “Other Governmental Funds” for excise
tax phase-out, $4 million from “Issuance of Debt” and 0.1 million from “Bond Premium”.

The net change in fund balances was $3.4 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. This was primarily
due to the issuance of $4 million of general obligation bonds.

Review of Governmental Major Funds-Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances-School Department

The “School Department” had revenues for the year ended June 30, 2008 of $45.2 million. This was derived
from $43.3 million of “Intergovernmental” revenues, $1.6 million of charges for services, and $.3 million of
“Other” revenues.

Expenditures for the School Department totaled $135.8 million. This entire amount represents expenditures
related to “Education”.

In addition to general operating revenues, the School Department also reccived $85.4 million of “Other
Financing Sources” in the form of “Transfers In” from the “General Fund”.

The net change in fund balances was $(5.2) million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. This was primarily

due to an increase in salaries and benefits of $3.8 million, coupled with a decrease in Medicaid reimbursement
revenues of $1.0 million and a decrease in other revenues of 0.4 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Proprietary Funds

The Proprietary Funds consist of the Sewer Fund, the Public Facilities Management Foundation, the School
Lunch Program, and the Internal Service Fund. The major source of revenues consists of “Charges for Usage
and Service” of $18.7 million. Total operating revenues were $20.1 million. Total operating expenses for the
year ending June 30, 2008, for the Proprietary Funds were $20.1 million. The “Contract Payments” of $13.0
million for sewer privatization comprise the majority of the expenses. Net “Non-Operating Revenues™ for the
year ending June 30, 2008 were $1.4 million. The Proprietary Funds ended fiscal year 2008 with $1.5 million
more in revenues than expenditures. Net Assets “Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt” was $60.3
million at June 30, 2008. Unrestricted Net Assets were $(19.1) million at June 30, 2008, compared to $(24.5)
million at June 30, 2007, an increase of $5.4 million or 22.0%.

Analysis of Significant Budget Variations in the General Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2008, the General Fund Revenues exceeded budget projections by $ 0.4 million or
0.2%. General Fund expenditures were under budget by $3.2 million or 1.4%. This resulted in $3.6 million of
positive variance from revenues in excess of expenditures in the General Fund for the year ending June 30,
2008.
Significant revenue variances include:

*  Property taxes — Favorable variance of $1.2 million due to an increase the tax rates.

e Intergovernmental — Unfavorable variance of $1.6 million due to a mid-year decrease in state aid.

o Departmental Income and Licenses and Fees — Unfavorable variance of $2.2 million and $1.2 million,

respectively, due to a downswing in the economy.

Significant expenditure variances include:

e Rescue Fund ~ Favorable variance of $1.7 million due to expenditures recorded in conjunction with the
City’s residents’ third party rescue fee runs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Capital Assets

The City of Cranston’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2008 and 2007 amounted to $191.3 and $182.8 million, respectively (net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, motor vehicles, machinery and equipment and office
furniture and equipment, and infrastructure.

The presentation below for the current fiscal year lists the major categories of capital assets for governmental
activities and business-type activities. Infrastructure assets, assets that are long-lived and can be preserved for a
significantly greater number of years than most capital assets and that normally are stationary in nature such as
streets, sidewalks and curbing are subject to different rules under the standards established by GASB 34. All
infrastructure assets are included in the City’s capital assets.

Capital Assets at Year End

(In Millions)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Land.....cooooivevmiorneneenenes $11.1 $11.1 $03 $ 03 $114 $114
Construction in progress......... 0.9 5.0 23 1.1 3.2 6.1
Land improvements............... 11.4 10.9 0.3 0.3 1.7 11.2
Buildings .....cooooencemnevecnnceicnee 78.6 62.5 78.6 62.5
Motor vehicles........ovvuruuneunnn. 15.4 14.9 154 14.9
EqUipment........ocveevenverencenas 9.7 93 0.5 1.0 10.2 10.3
Infrastructire ......covvrvvrmvrnnnns 82.7 32.2 82.7 82.2
Leasehold improvements........ 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
Sewer lines.....c..ccvevverecirenecnens 46.6 46.6 46.6 46.6
Treatment and pumping plant. 81.1 8]1.1 81.1 311
Total assels..............ccovenee.n.. 209.8 195.9 131.2 130.5 341.0 3264
Less: accumulated depreciation _ (88.0) (83.7) (61.7) (59.9) (149.7) (143.6)
Net capital assets.................... $121.8 $112.2 $69.5 $ 706 $191.3 $1828

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2008
were $341.0 million less accumulated depreciation of $149.7 million for a net investment in capital assets of
$191.3 million.

Governmental Activities:

Major capital asset additions during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 included the following:

e $3.9 million of improvements to Cranston High School East.
e $2.6 million for cost associated with the completion of the new police and municipal court complex.
» $1.8 million for recreational facilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Capital Assets (Continued)

Business-Type Activities:

Major capital asset additions during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 included the following:
e $1.2 million of construction in progress for a sewer facility upgrades.
Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found on Note IIL. C. of this report.

Long-Term Liabilities

As of June 30, 2008, the governmental activities had total long-term obligations of $193.3 million. Of that,
$90.8 million related to bonded debt guaranteed by the City’s assets. The City currently has $3.3 million in
leases payable. The business-type activities had total long-term debt of $12.4 million. Of that, $9.2 million
related to State Revolving Loans (SRF) from Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency and $3.2 million
related to Certificates of Participation that relate to the Public Facilities Management Foundation. The (SRF)
funds are available for projects related to clean water. The $3.2 million of Certificates of Participation relate to
acquisition and improvements of the Public Works Facility. See Note IILF.1. for further explanation of
outstanding debt.

Based on an actuarial valuations completed as of July 1, 2008, the net pension obligation liability for unpaid
pension contributions increased by $0.4 million from $87.5 million at June 30, 2007 to $87.9 million at June 30,
2008. Also, the net other post-employment benefit obligation (OPEB) liability for the Cranston School
Department OPEB plan was .5 million at June 30, 2008.

Additional information can be found in Note IILF.1.

Debt Qutstanding

For the year ending June 30, 2008, the City had $106.5 miilion in debt (bonds, notes, etc.) outstanding
compared to $96.5 million at June 30, 2007, a net increase of $10.0 million or 10.3% (considering debt
retirement and new issues). The key factors for this increase were $16.1 million in additional borrowings plus
premiums of $.4 million, less $6.5 million in principal payments made during fiscal year 2008.

Outstanding Debt, at June 30

(in Millions)
2008 2007
Governmental:
General obligation Bonds........c..ccevererrerereeirereireeeesessaecessene e enens $90.8 $82.2
CaPIA] JEASE..evverreererererreeneereec e rncsroni et et bbb bbb 3.3 3.8
SUBIOUAL ...ttt 94.1 86.0
Business-type:
Sewer revolving Joans ... 9.2 7.0
Certificates of partiCipation ... 3.2 3.5
SHBEOIAL ...ttt et e b 12.4 10.5
TOUU ...ttt bbb es st sa s s srs et s b e s s s $106.5 $96.5

Principal payments of $5.4 million and $1.1 million were made in the governmental and business-type
activities, respectively, during fiscal year 2008.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM LIABILTIIES (CONTINUED)

Except as explained below, under Rhode Island law the City may not, without special statutory authorization,
incur any debt that would increase its aggregate indebtedness not otherwise excepted by law to an amount
greater than 3% of the taxable property of the City. Deducted from the computation of aggregate indebtedness
is the amount of any borrowing in anticipation of taxes authorized by law and the amount of any sinking funds
maintained by the City. There is currently no outstanding debt of the city subject to the 3% debt limit. The
current 3% debt limit of the City is $259 million based on taxable property as of December 31, 2006, of
approximately $8.6 billion. On June 30, 2008, the City had $87.9 million of debt outstanding that is outside the
3% debt limit.

The City’s bond ratings are as follows:
» Standard & Poor’s : “A”
»  Fitch Ratings: “BBB+”

s  Moody’s Investors Service : “Baal”

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

* As noted previously, the Fiscal Year 2009 operating budget was passed by a majority vote of the City
Council. Property tax collections were assumed to be collected at 98.1% of the current levy.

e The City budgeted approximately $19.1 million for Police and Fire Pension Fund contributions.
Unemployment Statistics

The most recent labor market information summary indicates that annualized unemployment for the
years indicated was as shown in the following table:

Annualized

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

City of Cranston .......ccoueueuuee 50% 44% 4.0% 42% 4.6% 50% 58% 52% 51% 5.1%
State of Rhode Island........... 4.9 4.1 4.1 4.4 5.1 5.3 5.2 5.0 5.1 5.0
United States.........ccoovvevinens 4.5 4.2 4.0 4.8 58. 60 3.5 5.1 4.6 4.6

Source: Rhode Island Department of Labor and Training.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an
interest in the City of Cranston’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report
or request for additional financial information should be addressed to:

Finance Director
City of Cranston
869 Park Avenue
Cranston R1 02910
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EXHIBIT A

(1 of2)
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
ASSETS
Current assets:
B8Rttt e e e A TR e hae s e an 3 24,458,862 3 5,886,722 $ 30,345,584
TIEVESEIICIIES ..o vuus 1 revssmseesemsmemememessssa st s b smmame s ah e et s b 4 b 41 40 7,185,256 7,185,256
Receivables:
Property taxes,. . 3,443,024 3,443,024
Sewer assessmems ancE user fees net 531,815 531,815
Tntergovermmental . ... s 9,144,589 3,773,462 12,918,051
Loans. . ceeeneene 2,224,445 2,224,445
Other. 3,453,511 336,797 3,790,308
Prepaids RSTION 790,884 790,884
Internal batances. .. [ 684,909 (684,909) .
(0110 T - O P 42244 42,244
Total current assets 51,385,480 9,886,131 61,271,611
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Temporarily restricted: . .
Cash oo 50:2,5%4 500 594
Receivables (net):
3,178,176 3,178,176
2,866,060 2,866,000
. 85,759 85,759
Other asseis 2,078,826 176,880 2,255,706
‘Total receivables and other 85865, s 5,342,761 3,036,880 8379641
Capital assets (net of acoumulated depreciation):
371 1 U PO G 11,651,635 342,712 11,394,347
ConSITECtion Hl PIOBTESS. .. .rveaervsrarromers e ereeeensiis vasm s s cremvennsans 869,883 2,343,106 3,212,989
Land improvements......... 4,107,894 73,132 4,181,026
Leasehold improvements... 93 887 93,887
Buildings... 45,473,706 45 473,706
Collection systems I 19,208,566 19,208,566
Treatment and pumping piant ...... 47,342,358 47,342,358
Vehicles.. . 4,011,042 4,011,042
Machmery, equxpment and ﬁmuturc ........................................... 2,324,955 115,729 2,440,684
TfrastICtare. . e et e i e s e e e e e e 53,350,593 53,350,593
Total Capital assets (net of acoumulated depreciation) 121,789,708 69,519,490 191,309,198
Total NONCHITERE BSSEES......coiviiiurirurrrrersrrasarerrssesens seseensnensnsncrtonnns sansos 127,132,469 73,058,964 200,191 433
TOTAL ASSETS... ..o cesesctieirrssssnsr s serssressssermsmsses s ssbessasss s s s s s smm v 178,517,949 82,045 095 261,463,044
{Continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staternent
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EXHIBIT A

(Z of 2)
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable........eenens $ 4,391,711 $ 2,398,153 $ 6,789,864
Accrued liabiliges, .. 1,762,714 1,792,714
Accraed payrolt........... 1,259,459 1,392 1,260,851
Accrued interest payable............... 1,315,025 48,155 1,363,280
Retainage payable 74917 74,917
Uneamed revenue. 5,068,300 2,281,852 7,350,152
Claims payzble.... . . 2524572 2,924,672
Leng-term liabilities due within one year... ... 7,555,546 1,142,382 8,697,928
Total current HabiHHes. .. ... covuve v ieevr oo e i e 24,382,344 5,872,034 30,254,378
Noncurrent liabilities:
Unearned revenue, net of carrent portion 24,960,000 24,960,000
Long-term liabilities due in more than one year.... 185,792,283 11,289,939 197,082,222
‘Fotal noncurrent HabilHes. .. .....oooo oo s 185,792,283 36,249,939 222,042,222
FOTAL LIABILIE RS L e e e e e e 210,174,627 42,121,973 252,296,600
NET ASSE
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt........... 27,722,028 60,339,146 88,061,214
Restricted for:
COMMEEETTS ... ee e eeceiis oo iee e e e meseecmr s v e sen e ss b b s abe 3,066,910 5,008 3,071,910
Debt service, .. 502,594 502,594
Other purposes.. 152,538 152,538
UBEESIECIBA . oo cveeesvi e aee e s e s e s s e e eebes crd e ne e (62,598,154} (20,023,658) (82,621,812)
TOTAL NET ASSETS . e et e e $ {31 656,678} $ 40,823,122 $ 9,166,444
{Concluded)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT C

29

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

{1o£2)
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FUNE 30, 2008
OTHER TOTAL
GENERAL SCHOOL GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND DEPARTMENT FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS:
[0 U PO PO PP OO $ 15177615 b3 8,129,054 23,306,659
IVESIMIERIS. .. ..ot s ee e et et e e e e e e e s e e s v et e v e 3,017,561 4,167,695 7,185,256
Receivables:
TBRES, FIBL, v v ves cen eecve it cae veteee oo s e aas ceetrs e e e ver ban eh e e e 4,419,819 4,419,819
Intergovernmental.., ... 6,885,873 1,358,757 899,959 9,144 589
LOBDS... oo e 2,224 445 2,224,445
Other... ... 289,628 3,435,509 3,725,537
Prepaids... ... 766,500 24,384 790,884
Due from other fands... e 2,020,714 1,436,588 1,384,296 4,841,598
Advances to other fURAS... ... .o oot it it e e e 3.193.052 3,193,052
T AL ASSET S et it e et ie e et e e et et e ant e e st s e $ 35004262 $ 3,561,845 20,265,142 58,831 849
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
LEABILITIES:
Accounts DAYEDIE. .. ... .. .o is e e e e s e e $ 1,480,200 $  1,265856 1,636,686 4,382,742
Accrued payroll........ 1,131,232 126,777 1,258,009
Accrued Habilities... .. 214,534 214,534
Retainage payable... .. 74,917 74,917
Due to other funds... e e s 1,670,000 1,503,821 1,462,365 4,636,186
Deferred and uneamed Fovenue,. 6,957,682 2,378,171 9,335,853
Claims payable... 1,447,209 1,093,640 2,540,849
Other liabilities... 1,116,180 462,000 ,578,180
Advances from other funds 3,193,052 3,193,052
TOTAL LIABILITIES .. ..o e e e e e v 12,900,857 8,172,549 6,140,916 27214,322
FUND BAELANCES:
Reserved for:
AVANCES. ..o oo iie it et e e et et e e e e v et aes ben es ve e 3,193,052 3,193,052
Encumbrances... .., cccoocvvee i e 573,226 573,226
LEETBCY .. v s cve e cer e e e me e et ane e 29,526 29,529
COMIETENES. .. .\vvve i v e ereceeees eeeeae s 3,066,910 3,066,910
Prepaid items... 24,384 24,384
Article 18,,. 98,625 98,625
Unreserved, reported in;
Designated for health care.., , 250,000 ) 250,000
Designated for subsequent yeaz cxpendstures. 200,000 200,000
General fund, .. 18,910,353 18,910,353
Spcc:aircvenueﬁmds...... et e e e et bes e nr e {5,762,084) 6,256,781 494 697
Capital project fUNES.. ... oo vs o es s e et e e e e 477,151 4776751
TOTAL FUND BALANCES ... i i e 22,103 405 {4,610,704) 14,124,826 31,617,527
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.............ov .. $ 35004262 § 3561845 20,265,742 58,831,849
{Continued)



RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCE
TO NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2008

EXHIBIT C

2of2)

AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (EXHIBIT A) ARE
DIFFERENT FROM THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET. THE DETAILS OF THIS DIFFERENCE ARE AS
FOLLOWS:

TOTAL FUND BALANCE (EXHIBIT €, PAGE 1) e s s e v e e e e

R

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ARE NOT FINANCIAL RESOURCES
AND, THEREFORE, ARE NOT REPORTED IN THE FUNDS:

Beginning CaPItal @S5EES ... .vevui s roreos et et ce e e e e s e e e e L e e L s e e e e e e e e
Capital 285t BEAIEONS. .. ... s oot ittt i s e e e e e e e L e e
DIEPIECIBHON BXPEISE. .. .vv s ec vt it v i s s st st sesse s hrmrs res oo rrsma s oe he st s asae sre e T T ek e s E e B dee e TR T e R
Disposal 0F CapIlal 88555, .. .o .ot oot ittt e e e e e e e e e aen e e e

OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS ARE NOT AVAILABLE TG PAY FOR CURRENT PERIOD
EXPENDITURES AND, THEREFORE, ARE DEFERRED IN THE FUNDS:

Property tax, interest and lien accrual, (nef of allowance)... ...
Property tax receivable - acorual basis Change... ... ..o i e
BT BSSEIS. .. .o vvs oo ceeveaamruesre 1osrrn rrr s s e ae v ane seesa et see s e mn mnn s s e AN eee s bEe et aee L ees rre s EEE e e e s
OPER B558E+ v +rveeee et eee e et e e eee oo eee vt ebs s se st se 1 sea st et abs e 0 ro e eoa ea 1o 1o e e e e e e b s s e

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND IS USED BY MANAGEMENT TO CHARGE THE COST OF
SELF-INSURANCE TO INDIVIDUAL DEPARTMENTS:

The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included in governmental activities in the
SEALCITIEIIE O  BBL BSSEES. .. ... et teiee it ieeor oo tn it s b e venrrraen coe rhu e fes ree s aeeer e e e en A 4as sbe ek aee seeaaeren i ne e

SOME LIABILITIES, INCLUDING BONDS PAYABLE, ARE NOT DUE AND PAYABLE IN THE
CURRENT PERIOD AND, THEREFORE, ARE NOT REPORTED IN THE FUNDS:

Bonds and N0LES PRYADIE. .. ....uuutiiiis et et vrreres snne oo e ie et e e s e e s e s he e ahd e nrn e e e e e
LRASES PAYADIC. . ve vee s et o e e e bt e e e ey e e e e b e b
Compensatedd BDSEIICBS. . ... it it iisviriis ton vve e vesom e eee s srr e sae e e e bR g i e e ar s Ty ey e
DIeflrred SAIAY. ... oot e e e e e e e e er T e s e e r e e
Net pension ObHZRHOM. .. ... ... it e e e e e e e
NEt OPEB OBHBAHON. .. 00 vvt vt mvnerr o rneee vertne sesn tiears sasms sahses st ses tasbe aaaaes b wrn are s man prs s en e e e v eae 2eeens
Claims and JRAZIIEIES. .. ... oot it i e i a s e e s i e fe en e e s e L e e e e rerae s b e e e
Acoried HIEEEESt PAYADIE. .. ... crr eoe e ittt e e e s e e e e e s e e e s e e s e e

31,617,527

112,259,665
14,474,110
(5,130,826)

186,759

2,201,381
4,267,553
2,078,826

85,759

965,422

(90,803,367)
(3,264,313)
(10,426,876)
(295,974)
(87.943,251)
(554.048)
(60,000)
(1,315,025)

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES. . .. oottt i e me v et e e e e e $

{31,656,678)

The notes to the financial staterments are an integral part of this statement
30
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2608

EXEBIBIT D

OTHER TOTAL
GENERAL SCHOOL GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FLIND DEPARTMENT FUNDS FUNDS
REVENUES:
GeReral PrOPErtY BAXBS...... oeurevir ot ee e eeareerae et s smee b e e $ 155,213,411 $ $ $ 155213411
Intergovermmental... ... 8,740,958 43,287,739 20,994,047 73,022,744
Charges for services.... 11,532,231 1,579,427 2,619,831 15,731,489
Investment income. .. 1,823,841 437,092 2,260,933
(01117, JUTT U OO TP RO U 282,734 285,603 244,364 §22.701
TOTAL REVENUES ...ttt et e ie e bie sriian i irn aerae eeremnns 177,593,175 45,162,765 24,295 334 247,051,278
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General BOVETTMENE. .. .....cevr it ir et aeeeee vt e be s arr v s rem s 8,076,995 797,162 8,874,157
Publicsafety.......co oo 65,643,802 3,695,526 69,339,328
Public works... ..o vvvvve v veevee e eeeeens 13,320,943 13,320,943
Education............. 135,785,698 8973259 144,758,957
Parks and recreation.... 2,114,610 412,002 2,526,612
Public libraries... 3,070,340 02,756 3,163,096
Sendor services...... .. 2,931,862 154,498 3,086,360
Community deveiopment 876,379 876,379
(01T, S S SV PT S UP TR 163,802 163,802
Debt Service:
Principal... e 4,980,000 4,980,000
Interest and uther costs 3,758,387 281,185 4,039,572
Capital Outlay:
Capital expendillles. .. ... ... .ot v i e e 8,955,447 8,955 447
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ..ot oo et v nir e nn sereie e e 104,060,741 135,785,698 24238214 264,084,653
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES...... 73,532,434 {90,622,929) 57,120 {17,033,375)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Issuance of deht. ., T 4,000,000 9,075,000 13,075,000
Bond premium.... 107,362 251,331 358,693
Transfers in..... 12,400,173 85,413,637 1,188,823 59,002,633
2 2 Y| S PO (86,600,497 (£2,402,136) {59,002,633)
NET OTHER FENANCING SOURCES (USES). v ovirveever e (70,062 9621 £5.413.637 (1,886,982) 13,433 693
NET CHANGE BN FUND BALANCES. ... ..o oi e ee et v i1 3,439,472 (5,209,292) (1,829,862) (3.599,682)
FUND BALANCES - JUEY 1, 2007 ..o e e 18,663,933 598,588 15,954 688 35,217,209
FUND BALANCES -JUNE 30,2008, . ... inrn e e $ 22,103,405 $  (4,610,704) $ 14,124,826 $ 31,617,527

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT E

(10£2)
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
(EXIIBIT By ARE DUE TO:
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (EXHIBIT D)... ..o o9 (3,599,682)
Governmental funds report capital ouflays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities the cost
of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period:
Lo I £ g S 14,474,110
DePTECIBtION XPBIISE. .. ... .oe it et ot ot ot vt aes oot as bes ta er e e e e s rY v Y AT T e £re S ene See e fen se s e s o (5,130,826)
FOUAE. . oo v eet et te e eee et e es s e oottt e eseihet eabheh e o ot eer £ et £ e e et Sea en eee s aes nes s ees s nne e fr et e ee e RS A e ey sae e 9,343,284
The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i. e., sales, trade-ins and donations)
is to increase net assets. In the Statement of Activitics, only the loss on the sale of capital assets is reported.
However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change
in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the cost of the capital assets sold:
Tisposal OF CAPIAT ABSEES. .. 11.vie it et it ristrrsrnves e vrt 1 te Sot 2eeme een teees ee hs eet eas ss e e tene b e s e neE e e e . . 186,759
Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported
as revenucs in the funds and revenues recognized in the Fund Financial Statements arc not recognized in the
Statement of Activities:
Change in property tax recefvable - acorual basis change. .. ... i e e 29,951
Change in property tax interest and Len FEVEIIE. .. ... oo oot e s e e e 464,654
) OO U P I PR SU RO DU PPP 494,605
The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the prircipal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmenial
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect
of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. The details of these differences in the freatment of
long-term debt and related items are as follows:
Debt issued or incurred:
Bonds, related Habilities, and capital TEASES... ... ..o it i e e e e e b (13,433,693)
Principal repayments: :
General 0bligation DOBAS... ... .. ot i e e e e e e e e s 4,665,000
O [ O SV PO UU U UP PP POV 578,515
O] Lo oo et tie et es ee e e e et veebbe e tn faeea fanear s £ a4 ee S o £ et £oe Saa bn femn eee nen s en e e e AE Tas bk be arr s e rs bee s {8,190,178)
(Continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

EXHIBITE
(2 of2)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

Compensated absences and deferred salary (... ..o it i vor e e e e
B[ T T 1 ) 171 O G
INEE OPEB BESEE. 1 10t nceeaee oo et ae e eee v et eesmrreverd hes ve Sh Sae s et 4re hs et srR En 4o S ns eehak see vs abs s eh bes nak are sesnn ge s
Net OPEB OBHEALOM. 1 vvvvet vty iescirarsnves ine an 101 srs svs rrr rrd ves 4oseas as sae sa tes s as s an sen ser sen d ot en tee mee aesnes s an bns see ae s
Amortization 0 DO ISSUANCE COSES... ..t titiit ittt is vrsvrsrrrrr s e rre reeaos s et et tesces aes s s erneee e e e s e ves s e b
Amortization of DORA Premifii. .. ... ...t i s e e e v e e e e sk e e e e aeae e e e s
Accrued Interest PAYABIE. .. ... .o oo e ey vy e e e se s st rre e e

£ S OO O O UOURIN

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge costs of property insurance

deductibles 0 individual departmentS. .. ... ... ..ottt e e e e e e ey e e ree e as e e
The net revenue of the activities of the Internal Service Fund is reported with governmental activities. .. ... e

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (EXHIBIT B} ... s s

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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b (651,235)

(401,331)

(90,652)

(554,048)

{188,460)
150,351

{80,463}

{1,825,838)

189,980
38,612

$  (3,362,458)

{Concluded)



EXHIBIT X

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FLINDS ACTIVITIES
MAJOR FUNDS NONMAJOR FUND
PUBLIC FACILITIES
MANAGEMENT SCHOOL LUNCH ENTERNAL SERVICE
SEWER FOUNDATION PROGRAM TOTALS FUND
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equvalents..........ov v e v vennn i in s $ 5,739,608 5 § 147,114 £ 5,886,722 3 1,152,193
Receivables (net):
Sewer assessments and user fees, net................ 331,815 534,815
OHhet e i 1,797 1,797
Capital lease.... 335,000 335,000
Intergovernmental, .. 3,693,959 79,503 3,773,462
Due from otker funds . 207,471
TBVENEOTY et v vevevvrecns sreermcoeeme siemms s benba st raesaaees ran s 42,244 42,244
Total Cureent ASSEIS. .o evrenirever v ren e e b e sie et bae s 9,965,382 335,000 270,658 10,571,04¢ 1,359,664
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted ¢ash oo 502,594 502,594
Capital lease receivable. 2,860,000 2,860,000
OHhEr @SSE1S. e iv e cres mre v rerreeens 47,783 120,097 176,880
Subtotal Noncurrent ASSEIS......vvvoreces oy crmeir sersesmieaes e 47,783 3,491,691 B 3,539.474 -
Capital Assets:
Capital assets, net of acenmulated depreciation,................. 69,365,999 101,622 51,869 69,519,490
Total Noncurrent ASSEIS.......c.cvv e reerccnriariremierssoreen §9413,782 3,593,313 51,869 73,058.964 -
FOFAL ASSETS . i e e 79.379,164 3,928,313 322,527 - 83,630,004 1,359,664 -
LIABILITIES
Carrent Liabilities:
Accounts payable... ..o e s 2,334,562 4,956 58,635 2,398,153 8,569
Agorned payroll.... 1,392 £,392 1,450
Acerued interest... 21,458 26,797 48,255
Duetootherfands.., ..o 140,547 544,762 684,969
Claims payable..........ccunns " 383,823
Uncaned feveIUE. .. ...u.. ... i 2,281,852 2,281,852
Bonds, notes payable and compensated absences............... 804,433 335,000 2,949 £,142,382
Total Current Eiabilities.........cco v iviivniiiniions e e 5,583,844 365,933 606,346 6,556,943 394,242
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Unearned revenue, net of cuszeat pOrion... ....ooevererrveceenens 24,960,000 24,960,006
Bonds, notes payzable and comp d absences............... 8,423,634 2,839,743 26,542 11,289,939
Total Norcurrent Liabiities....o.oovvrvviniens ooy 33,383,654 2,839,743 26,542 36,249,939 -
TFOTAL LEABILTHIES ..o e, 38967498 3,206,495 632,888 42,805,882 394,242
NEF ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of refated debt.......oovvv v vinnns 60,185,695 101,622 51,869 60,339,186
Restricted;
[0 1T 1T 10T PSRN 5,600 5,000
Exebt service. . 502,594 502,594
Vnrestricted. . ....ooeeenen e (19,779,029) 117,601 {362,230 {240,023 658) 065,422
TOTAEL NET ASSETS. i vt e s 5 40411666 5 721817 $ (310,361) $ 40823122 $ 965,422

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

EXHIBIT ¢

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVIFIRS GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
MAJOR FUNDS NONMAJOR FUND
PUBLIC FACILITIES
MANAGEMENT SCHOOL, LANCH INTERNAL SERVICE
SEWER FOUNDATION PROGRAM TOTALS FUND

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for usage and SErvICe......ccoovvveerriec i iieinaneans 3 16,509.405 $ 38,500 % 1,173,903 $ 17,721,308 $ 942,000

MiISCEHANCOUS. .. coovv vttt it eee e i bt e 1,008,450 149,349 155,649 1,313,488 96,770
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES...... oo 17,517,895 187,849 1,329,552 12035296 1,638,770
OPERATING EXPENSES:

OPCFAHOME .. ot cvv i veeiin e ens et veevemntererrs s aene e 628,377 45,848 1,641,852 2,316,077 557,091

PErSONREL .. ..evinivs e e irein et e s ene s 76,923 1,358,952 1,435,875 78,892

Claims.........ccc... - 212,807

COREACE PAVIICRIS ... ovvtvvecceeriricvs ceerrees riene e 13,031,684 13,031,684

Depreciation... ... cc.oovveeeveeiieeeeaen e 2.366 878 13,304 22,604 2,402,791
TOTAL QPERATING EXPENSES... ..ot e 16,103,862 59,152 3,023,413 9,186,427 848,790
OPERATING BNCOME (LOSS) ... oot e e 1,414,033 128,697 {1,693.861) (151,131} 189,980
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSESY:

Interest expense.... {62,724) {165,502} (228,626}

Investment income. 198,745 16,384 1,956 217,685 38,612

Amortizatiot................ (7,554) (20,975) (28,529}

Intergovermnmental grants..................... e 1436386 1,436,380
NET NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)............ 128467 {170.493) 1438336 1,396,310 38612
CHANGE INNET ASSETS. ..o e, 1,542,500 (41,796) (255,525) 1,245,179 228,592
NET ASSETS « JULY E, 2007, ccoivvn i vvicnsennnns 38,869,166 763,613 {54,836) 39,577,943 736,830
NET ASSETS-JUNE30,2008... ... e $  40.411,666 3 721,817 $ {310,361) § 40823122 $ 965422

The notes to the financial statements are an integrat part of this statement
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
TROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

EXHIBITH

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
MAJOR FUNDS NONMAJOR FUND
PUBLIC FACILITIES
MANAGEMENT SCHOOL LUNCH INTERNAL SERVICE
SEWER FOUNDATION PROGRAM TOTALS FUND
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from custoters... % 14,715,096 % 187,849 % £,590,226 $ 1649317 3 168,126

Cash paid to suppliers........ {13,031,684) (1,606,938) {14,638,647)

Cash paid to employees. {76,612) (1,358,524) (1,435,136) (78,615)

Cash paid for claims...... . {158,532)

Cash pa;dforotl'leroperatmgexaenses...‘....,.................,....,.... (797,038 {40392} {8:7.931) {562 925}
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING

ACTIVITIES... RO 829.761 146,957 (1.375.256) {398.538) (31,946}
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVIFIES:

Nonoperating grants Yeceived. ... .o ooiver e oo eee v een o s e 1,433,628 1,433,628
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USiZD IN) NONCAPITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES... TN - - 1,433,628 1.433,628 -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition of capltal assets. .o vov oo e e (1,272,773} (8,150) {6,676) (1,287,599

Collection of capital lease payment.. 315,000 315,000

Bond proceeds... ... ......... 3,000,000 3,000,000

Principal paid on bonds, (803,165} (315,006} (1,118,163)

Interest paid on: bonds. ... ... {64,670} {168,462} {233.132)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USE,D IN) CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES... . TP 850,392 (176,612} {6.676) 676,104 -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: . . .

Yncome from investments.. 198,745 16,384 1,956 287,085 38,612
NET INCREASE {DECREASEYIN CASH ... ocirc e v 1,887,898 {13,271} 53,652 1,928,279 6,666
CASE - JULY 1, 2007 {INCLUDING RESTRICTED CASIE... ........... 3851710 515,865 93,462 4,461,037 1,145,527
CASH - JUNE 30, 2008 (INCLUDING RESTRICTED CASH)............ 3 5,739,608 3 302,594 g 147,114 % 6385316 3 1,122,193
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME {LOSS) TO NET

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN} OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating M0ome (I0SE). . ... vev e ee e e e e $ 1414033 3 128,697 $ (1,693,868) $ {151,131) $ 189,980

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (f0ss) to net cash

provided by {used i) opcrating activities;
Depreciation. .. T 2,366,878 13,304 22,609 2,402,791
(Increase) decrease in accounts recewai:le 535,932 (306) 535,626
(Increase) decreast in. inventory... (422) (422)
(Increase) decrease in mtergovenunemal rece:vabies (4,848,508) (1,848,568)
(Increase) decrease due from other funds. .. R - (207471
Increase (decrease} in accounts payable... e e et e s (148,662) 4956 45,376 (98,330} (5,834)
Increase (decrease} in accrued payroil..... 311 {10,060} {9,749} 277
Increase (decrease) in prepaid assessments. 342932 342,932
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds., 86,845 260,980 347,825 (63,173)
Dreorease in claims payable............ B 54,275
Ingrease in uneamed revenue. , . (1,920,000} (1,920,000}
Decrease in compensated absences. . o v iie e on v veeenns 428 428
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES.... $ 829761 $ 146,957 & {1,375,256) 3 (398.538) $ {31,946)

‘The nates io the financial statements are an integral part of this statersent

36



EXHIBIT I

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008
PENSION AND
OTHER POST-
EMPLOYMENT PRIVATE
BENEFIT PURPOSE AGENCY
TRUST FUNDS TRUST FUND FUNDS
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents.........ocoeeiviieiinninenenens $ 982,755 $ 1,139 $ 1,543,595
Investments:
Real Estate Investment Trust.......coooroiiiniiiiiiinn.. 2,104,939
Equity Mutual Funds. ..o s cessciencinssnees 26,995,896
Fixed income Index Mutual Fund.........ooonnid 3 10,818,185
Bond Mutual Funds.....ccvvevrerrrereirmiimniiiiiisneinin. 10,316,127
Total Fvestments. ..ooov e ricr s r e eaean 50,235,147 - -
Due from other finds. ..oovvviiiiiiiricr e eceas 275,669
TOTAL ASSE T S . it i rrrre e 51,493,571 1,139 1,543,595
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable. ..o 27,245
Deposits held in custody for ofhers.........ovvveeereieeaninns 1,543,595
Due to other funds....ceoivvierearvnerireenrernnreccneanieriass 3,643
TOTAL LIABILITIES .. o.iiinviiiern e eeae e smemenaenes 27,245 3.643 1,543,595
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION AND
OPER BENEFITS AND OTHER PURPOSES............0t $ 51,466,326 $ {2,504) $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT .J
CITY OF *

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

PENSION AND
OTHER POST-
EMPLOYMENT PRIVATE
BENEFIT PURPOSE
TRUST FUNDS TRUST FUND
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Employer contributions.........eveiviiniireciiiiiiiiiaisii $ 23,404,766 $
Plan member contributions........coovviiiininveinininnn, sreerianans 841,076
Other CONIDULIONS. ..o i it i ii i i ire s rr e rereeeernnrsrcanarasasas 11,561
Total CONIIDULIONS. cvv s e rrrervrrrnrnrnrenrsrsnrareernremesensoneasnnsnssnsans 24,245,842 11,561
Investment income (loss):
Interest and dividends......vvnrrr et 71,753
Net depreciation in the fair value of investments.............cocoenn (2,321,479)
Total investment Income (JOSS)....cocvriiiiiiiiiniiiin s (2,243.726) -
TOTAL ADDITIONS. ... oo everereseseeeeeseeseeseeseseesreseeseeessnan 22,002,116 11,561
DEDUCTIONS:
& 3T 1| 1T P P 21,555,270 14,460
Administrative eXpenses....cocoiiiiiiriiiiiii i e 479,892
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS . . e it iecr e resr s saeasaeannas 22,035,162 14,460
CHANGE INNET ASSE TS et reeetcrete e e e e eeananenas {33,046) (2,899)
NET ASSETS - JULY 1, 2007 ...t 51,499,372 395
NET ASSETS - JTUNE 30, 2008, ... i iiciive e s v e nae $ 51,466,326 3 (2,504)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT K
CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION

The City of Cranston, Rhode Island (the City) was incorporated in 1910 and covers an area of 28 square
miles. The City operates under a Mayor-Council form of government as prescribed by the City’s home rule
charter, which was adopted in 1962. The Mayor is elected by the voters of the City to a two-year term limited
to four consecutive terms. City Council members are elected to two-year terms, limited to five consecutive
terms. The City provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety (police and fire),
public works (streets and highways), public health and social services, sewers and water, a free public library,
and education encompassing grades PreK-12.

I  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A,

Reporting Entity

The City of Cranston, Rhode Island, is 2 municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and City
Council. The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units,
entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable, Blended component
units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the City’s operations.

~ Blended Component Unit — The Public Facilities Management Foundation (the Foundation), a non-

profit corporation, was created by the City on November 28, 2000. The Foundation consists of five
members who are elected by or work for the City of Cranston. These members include the President of
the Cranston City Council, the City Solicitor, the Director of Public Works, the Director of Finance and
the Director of Administration. The Foundation provides exclusive rights, by a term lease as entered
into with the City on November 1, 2000, to the use of land and buildings located in the City to be used
as a storage and maintenance facility by the Public Works Department. The Foundation is reported as
an enterprise fund.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes
in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-
type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.

39



EXHIBITK

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

L

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
Jocus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Agency funds do not have a measurement focus but are accounted for on the accrual basis
of accounting. Revenues are recorded when eamned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Govemnmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
Sfocus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, expenditure reimbursement type granis, certain intergovernmental revenues, transfers,
and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and
50 have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered
to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The School Department Fund accounts for the financial transactions of the City’s School
Department which are not required fo be accounted for in another fund.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Sewer Department Fund accounts for the activities of the City’s sewer operations.

The Public Facilities Management Foundation, a blended component unit of the City, accounts for
the activities that support and facilitate muitiple divisions of the Public Works Department.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The Special Revenue Funds account for revenue sources that are Jegally restricted to expenditures
for specific purposes.

The Capital Project Funds account for the acquisition of capital assets or construction of major
capital projects other than those financed by proprietary funds.

The Internal Service Fund, a proprietary type fund, is used to account for claims made against the

City.
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EXHIBIT K
CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

The Enterprise Funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business, primarily through user charges.

The Pension Trust Funds account for the activities of the Cranston Employees' Retirement System,
- which accumulates resources for pension benefit payments to qualified employees.

The QOPER Trust Fund accumulates resources for future retiree health benefits and retiree life
insurance benefits for eligible teachers and police and fire retirees.

The Private-Purpose Trust Funds are used to account for employee contributions held in trust for
qualified medical related plan expenditures. All resources of the fund, including any earnings on
invested resources, may not be used to support the City’s activities. There is no requirement that
any portion of these resources be preserved as capital.

The Agency Funds account for monies held on behalf of students and amounts held for
performance bonds.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and enterprise fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. The City also has the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for
their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected
not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements, Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges
between the City’s sewer operations and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the sewer department enterprise fund and of the City’s internal service funds are charges to customers
for sales and services. The sewer department also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap
fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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EXHIBIT K

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

L

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

Deposits - The City’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, money
market accounts and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition.

Investments - In general, State of Rhode Island Statutes allow the City to invest in obligations of the
United States of America or United States government sponsored corporations, in shares or other
interests in any custodial arrangement, pool, or no-load, open-end management type investment
company or investment trust (as defined), in obligations of any state or political subdivision rated
within the top two rating categories of any nationally recognized rating service, or in obligations of
the State of Rhode Island or political subdivision rated within the top three rating categories of any
nationally recognized rating service. Investment income is recorded in the fund in which it is earned.

The City's pension funds are invested in accordance with the plans investment policy, the City has
agreements with the investment advisors, who manage the investment portfolios and have full

authority for the investment and reinvestment of pension fund assets.

Investments for the City are reported at fair value.

2.  Receivables and Payables

a. Interfunds

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of
interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal
balances.” '

b. Property Taxes and Other Receivables

In the government-wide financial statements, all trade, property tax, and sewer use are shown
net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Allowance percentages range from 5 to 100% of
outstanding receivable balances and are calculated upon prior collection history.

In the fund financial statements, all property taxes receivable at June 30, which have not been
collected within sixty days of June 30, have been recorded as deferred revenue, since they are
not considered to be available to finance expenditures of the current year. Taxes collected
during the sixty day period have been recorded as revenue.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

2

3.

Receivables and Payables (Continued)

b. Property Taxes and Other Receivables (Continued)

Property taxes are assessed on property as of December 31. Taxes are billed on or about June |
(for the subsequent fiscal year) based on the assessed value for all real property, tangible
property, and motor vehicles located in the City. Taxes are due in four installments in July,
October, January and April. Rhode Island general laws restrict the City’s ability to increase
either its total tax levy or its tax rates by more then 5.5% over those of the preceding year.
Recently the State of Rhode Island passed a law, which went into effect for fiscal year 2008,
which would decrease this cap by .25% each year until it has been lowered to a maximum of 4%
of the prior year’s tax levy by fiscal year 2013. Taxes are considered overdue on the 6™ day of
each quarter taxes and are assessed penalties and will be collected through the sale of tax titles
if required. The City has a tax lien on the property as a matter of law on the date the roll is
certified, which is December 31 of the previous year.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method of valuation.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaids

are accounted for using the consumption method.

Restricted Assets

The restricted assets for the City are restricted for debt reserve requirements, building improvements
and minor maintenance costs associated with the Public Facilities Management Foundation.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $2,500 in the City and $5,000 in
the School Department for equipment, $20,000 for improvements and $100,000 for infrastructure,
and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

5.

6.

7

8.

Capital Assets (Continued)

Property, plant, and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 20-50
Leasehold improvements 20
Infrastructure 363
Sewer plant 50
Sewer lines and pumping stations 50-100
Vehicles 5
Machinery and equipment 3-20

Compensated Absences

Under the terms of various contracts and policies, City employees are granted vacation and sick
leave based on length of service. The City’s policy is to recognize the cost of vacation and sick
leave in governmental funds when paid and on the accrual basis in proprietary funds. The amount
of earned but unpaid vacation and sick leave relating to governmental fund employees is recorded as
long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net
assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the
life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Fund Equity and Net Assels

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a
specific putpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are
subject to change.
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISL.AND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D.

Assets. Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

8. Fund Equity and Net Assets (Continued)

In the government-wide financial statements, net assets are classified into the following categories:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

This category presents the net assets that reflect capital assets net of only the debt applicable to
the acquisition or construction of these assets. Debt issued for non-capital purpose is excluded.

Restricted Net Assets

This category presents the net assets restricted by external parties (creditors, grantors,
contributors or laws and regulations).

Unrestricted Net Assets

This category presents the net assets of the City which are not restricted.
9. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities including disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities and reported revenues, expenses and expenditures during the fiscal year.

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

It is the responsibility of the Mayor, with the cooperation of the Director of Finance, to submit a
proposed budget for the following fiscal year to the City Council not later than the first day of April of
each year. The City Council acts on the budget not later than the 15 day of May. Public hearings are
conducted on the recommended budget and the final recommended budget is legally enacted through an
ordinance at the Financial City Council Meeting. Budget appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal
year, with the exception of capital project funds.

The level of budgetary control for the General Fund (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot
legally exceed appropriations) is fixed by resolution of the annual Financial City Council Meeting and is
legally enforced at the department level. The resolution authorizes the City Council to spend within the
total sum appropriated for municipal purposes. While this restriction prohibits spending in excess of the
authorized budget, the policy enables the City Council to use surplus funds within the overall
appropriations budget to offset over expenditures that may arise within a specific budgeted account.
Amendments to the budget during the year totaled a decrease of $1,067,427, due to cutbacks in
education grants from the state of Rhode Island.
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IL

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

A.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (Continued)

The budget for the Schools Unrestricted Fund is prepared annually and approved by the School
Committee. The amount of the annual transfer from the General Fund is ultimately determined through
the adoption of the General Fund budget. This appropriation does not lapse at year end. The City also
adopts budgets for two of the nonmajor special revenue funds.

Encumbrances are recognized as a valid and proper charge against a budget appropriation in the year in
which the purchase order, contract or other commitment is issued and, accordingly, encumbrances
outstanding at year end are reported in the City’s budgetary reports as expenditures in the current year.
The budgetary reports are located in the Required Supplementary Information (RSI) immediately
following these notes. Generally, aside from the Capital Projects Fund, all unencumbered
appropriations lapse at year end. Appropriations for capital projects are reissued in the amount available
at the end of the fiscal year.

B. Capital Projects Authorizations

The following is a summary of projects recorded in the Capital Projects Fund at June 30, 2008:

CURRENT

: PROJECT YEAR - - CUMULATIVE BALANCE
PROJECT NAME AUTHORIZATION EXPENDITURES _EXPENDITURES JUNE 30, 2008
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:

School bond find.......ccovmrerrerann. $ 17,918,772 $ 3914979 $ 17,665,548 $ 253,224

Police and Fire bond fund........... 10,442,166 2,635,308 9,504,755 937,411

Public building bond fund ........... 1,680,000 46,193 1,142,374 537,626

Recreation bond fund .......cocccee. 6,863,932 1,756,480 5,113,080 1,750,852

Highway bond find ..covvevervennnae 5,699,674 302,132 4,787,091 912,583

Neighborhood infrastructure fund 1,531,223 56,666 1,382,717 148,506

Open space bond fund ......covvverne 481,090 106,000 436,760 44,330
ENTERPRISE FUNDS:

Sewer System Praject ... 1,266,575 438,175 1,266,575 -

Sewer System Project ... 3,000,000 834,600 834,600 2,165,400

C. Delicit Fund Balance

During the year ended June 30, 2008, the City had a deficit fund balance in the following funds:

Nonmajor Governmenial Funds

Community Development Block Grant..........cocooeueiin b 26,954
WIA Job Development Fund...........ooooovniininninnnns . 24,278
School Bond Fund....ovveeiieieiiiiir e e eeee e 198,990
Storm Drains Bond Fund..........cocoo v 15,007

The deficits will be eliminated through future intergovernmental grant receipts, repayment of
program loans or interfund contributions.
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[l DETAILED NOTES

A. Cash and Investments

1. Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure,
the City’s deposits may not be retumned to it. The City’s deposit policy for custodial credit risk
requires that deposits be placed in financial institutions that are FDIC insured up to $100,000 and
rated “well capitalized” on the institution’s most recent audited financial statements/SEC filings, if
deposits exceed $100,000. As of June 30, 2008, the City’s bank balance of $22,975,015 was
insured and collateralized as follows:

TISUEEU .e.veoeeveresecseseseessseessevenacesremsassbbsssessarrasresrnnnatas s sansnansrasasass $ 608,199
Collateralized:
Coljateral held by the pledging banks’

trust departments, not in the City’s NAME.....c.orvicminimimieienirens 22.366.816
Total amount subject to custodial credit Tisk .....oowrvccrciiinnss § 22975015

2. Certain investments are covered by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) up to
$500,000, including $100,000 of cash from sale or for purchase of investments, but not cash held
solely for the purpose of earning interest. SIPC protects securities such as notes, stocks, bonds,
debentures, certificates of deposit and money funds.

At June 30, 2008, the City's investments (including restricted investments) consisted of the

following: :
INVESTMENT MATURITIES (IN YEARS)
TYPE OF FAIR LESS i-5
INVESTMENT VALUE N/A THAN 1 YEARS
Miutual Funds:
Equity Mutual Funds .....ceoeareermseenens $ 26,995,896 $ 26,995,896 $ $
Bond Mutual Funds . 10,316,127 10,316,127
Fixed Income index Mutual fund ............ 10,818,185 10,818,185
Money Market Mutual Funds .....oooeerens 17,695 17,6935
Real Estate Investment Trust.....ccoevvvnnens 2,104,939 2,104,939
Certificates of Deposit....reeeeeerecsanenns 7.167.561 7.167,561
TOTAL covverevreeeveriessassmssssssrosnssmsssssssnsssrans $ 57,420403 $ 29100835 $ 1.185.256 $ 21134312

Additionally the City records 2 US Government money market account used on a transactional basis as
cash on the financial statements. The amount reflected in cash at June 30, 2008 was $18,239,975. This
fund is rated AAA and has a average duration of less than one year.

Interest rate risk - The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates.

Credit risk - The City has no investment policy that would limit its investment choices due to credit

risk other than State Statues governing investments in obligations of any State or political
subdivision or in obligations of the State of Rhode Island or political subdivision.
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Hl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

A.

Cash and Investments (Continued)

The City’s investments subject to credit risk had average ratings by Standard & Poor’s as follows:

MONEY FIXED

MARKET BOND INCOME

MUTUAL MUTUAL INDEX
AVERAGE RATING FUNDS FUNDS FUND
Unrated ..o S 17695 $10.316,127 $10.818.185

Custodial credit risk - The City does not have a formal policy with respect to custodial credit risk.
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be
able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside

party.

AMOUNT
LESS SUBJECT TO
INSURED CUSTODIAL
TOTAL AMOUNTS CREDIT RISK
Real Estate Investment Trust ........c.cooeueee $ 2104939 $ 500,000 S 1.604939

Receivables

Receivables as of year end for the City’s government-wide financial staternents by type, including
the applicable allowances for uncollectibles, are as follows:

PROPERTY TAXES
INTEREST
TAXES & PENALTIES TOTAL
Current POFHON ..oeeeeeeve v $ 2208306 3 1144718 §..3.443024
Long-term Portion......oeocinsinnnns $§ 5519513 $ 2,278,295 $ 7797808
Less Allowance for Uncollectibles ... (__3.398.000) {__1221.632) (..4619.632)
Net Long-term POFHON . .......ovvecerecrenenes $ 2121513 5. 1036663 §. 3.178176
Total Receivable.. e $ 4419819 §. 2201381 §__ 6621200
CONNETTA ECONOMIC
PARK DEVELOPMENT CDBG
LOAN LOANS LOANS TOTAL
Gross ReCeivVabie.......evrmremceeemsreemrseessenceseneons B 88687 % 871658 § 1264100 5 2224445
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ol DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

B. Receivables (Continued)

SEWER
USE
CHARGES

G108S RECEIVADIE....cocvoiiiriiririiirircsrienene e e sassstese s asss st sas e asssmsrasssnsranensennssrnssion $ 9143815
Less Allowance for Uncollectibles. ........cvinrinnccnreeenerc s (383,000)

N L REOEIVADIC ..o tressst st sssaassessassatsantestassnessssentassanenstantasssanssssbeesassanssrres $ 531.815

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the
end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue
reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

DEFERRED REVENUE: - | . -
Delinquent property taxes receivable (general fund)........oocvcoecernriniivcnncninnn, $ 4,267,553
UNEARNED REVENUE:
AdVance tax COHEBCHIONS ..cooviviiieiiriniresrinrisrerssnsnrsnstestensssssrsnssssesssssasssasssessasenees 2,633,817
Unearned developer Security deposiS ..o veevienmcrininnsimissssmseriees 56,312
Grant draw-downs prior to meeting all eligibility requirements ........cccocvrvennns 2,373,135
Unearned charges for SEIVICES ...t sersasssasaens 5.036
TOTAL UNEARNED REVENUE FOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ................ $ 9.335,853
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HI. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)
C. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1,2007 _INCREASES DECREASES  JUNE 30, 2008

Governmental Activities:

Capital Assets. not being Depreciated:

Land ... $ 11,051,635 % $ $ 11,051,635
Construction in progress........ 5.031.380 869.883 (5.031,380) 869,883
Total Capital Assets, not being Depreciated ......oovveeee 16,083,013 869,883 (5.031.380) 11.921.518
Capital Assets, being Depreciated:
Land improvements ... e seressesssssssnes 10,936,038 430,510 11,366,548
BUiGIngS. v veveveresrecmecsereeemenrcsisss s assmsesnanes 62,493,394 16,097,144 78,590,538
Machinery and eqUIPIMETI .veevveisiiinimsrseseirs s 3,457,344 241,576 {9,350} 3,689,570
Office furniture and equipment ... 5,865,535 248,518 (29,508) 6,084,543
Vehicles 14,850,124 1,166,503 (548,952) 15,402,075
Infrastructure 82.232.540 516,956 §2.749.496
Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated 179.834.975 18.633.607 {587.810) 197.882.772
Total Capital ASSCIS ..o cesvsnsnsnnnrnsssiscmsresmsassssres 195,917,990 19.505.480 {5.619.190) 209,804,290
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land improvements................ 6,097,615 561,039 6,658,654
BuildifigZs., cevverrrvereeersurersensesencnens . 31,977,955 1,293,008 (154,221) 33,116,832
Machinery and equIPRIENL ... ivmsserreerssssrsresars 1,875,970 327,931 (8,982) 2,194,919
Office fumniture and eqUEPMENT .. v ieecenresrirrissss " 5,009,407 282,608 (37,174) " 5,254,241
VEHHCIES 1ovvuresereeeeee e terise s sa s ss s s s senesnnesen 10,583,084 1,382,141 {574,192) 11,391,633
IO EASEUCHIT . e ecees s veeenearmrmnssssarerarvens 28.114.204 1.284.609 29,398.903
Total Accumulated Depreciation.....e e 83.658.325 3.130.826 (774.569) 88.014.582
Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated, net................ 96.176.630 13.504.781 186,759 109.868.190
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net...............  $112,259.665 $14.374.664 $(4.844621)  $121.789,708
Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets, not being Depreciated:
Land ccuveeierereennrenireesiseninen - $ 342,712 $ 5 $ 342,712
Construction in progress........... . 1,116,978 1,226,128 2,343,106
Total Capital Assets, not being Depreciated 1.459.6%0 1,226,128 _ 2,685 818
Capital Assets, being Depreciated:
Land Hnprovements .o s, 266,795 266,795
Leasehold improvements. . i 114,160 8,150 122,310
CoHection SYSIeINS cuvwrrrrersncenes 46,553,813 46,647 46,600,460
Treatment and pumping plant..... 81,064,977 81,064,977
Machinery and eqUIPIIERL ..o vivvernesvrrerisaresenessrseanenens 1,051,223 6.674 (365.090) 492,809
Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated ..o 129.050.970 61.471 {565.090) 128.547.351
Total Capital AssetS.....connn.. 130.510.660 1.287.599 (565.090) 131.233.169
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land improvements ... . 180,323 13,340 193,663
Leasehold Improvements........cououimmsrrrrssssessesnecaneaees 16,939 11,484 28,423
Collection SYSIEIMS vvereevemsrememrececienes 26,773,531 618,363 27,391,894
Treatment and pumping plant........vcrcersriiesnees 31,992,260 1,730,359 33,722,619
Machinery and eqUIDINEHE ... vssnseserrecmssonsones 912,925 29,245 (565050} 377.080
Total Accumulated Depreciation ... vmrereerernnenninns 59.875.978 2.402.791 {565,090} 61,713,679
Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated, net......un..... 69.174.992 (2.341.320) - 66.833.672

Business-Type Capital Assets, et 5 $ 70634682 $(1.115192) & - $ 69,519,490



EXHIBIT K
CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

HI. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)
C. Capital Assets (Continued)
Depreciation expense was charged to fimctions of the City as follows:

Governmental Activities:

GENEIA] QOVEINIMENE...cc0erreersecereaerisesecresssesmaressarssasmasssssrersssrssrasssnisassbesbassersabss s sasnasneses $3,155,822
PUDBIIC SATELY ..vvenrvvisaerereriescesesreescs st ssssssassssssssnsansssaesses st assssessbsssasasassssssssasssnsons 1,009,310
PUDIIC WOTKS .1t sttt ceiesienee e seere s srestessensesasssssssssrsssensensesat bedebasbesonaas st sasba b nE e R e e bssnes 505,064
FUUCALION. .0 verrerasssresiressississsssesiessteentabessesassssnenssnesssnsessrsssss essesmsssantssentaneossnensseenennseresnis 356,996
Parks and FeCTeatiON . ...cocvveeeeererereereereesasiarieseesssronrsssessnsssstsraesiesessessessnesnsssssssssssssnessessores 86,831
PUDBLC HDTATIES 1uvoveeeesrnrrsesssiensessisssestssissassseesssssessessisssessssssrssssssasensassasassnsntensosssssssiosss 8,873
SERIOT SEIVICES 1rvrerrarerasrorssscresesesetssstraessessssnseresmssssssesssssass s sasessrasasasmsnsborenssasbassesinstasss 7.930
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental ACHVItEs .....ovvovvevveecesesiesisnecerisiennn, $5,130.826

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities as follows:

Business-Type Activities:

GEWET .. eoesetcveersessssessassasssrssnssseressinmysabeasasabasessesssnarases b seasenssnasrsessasosersasssoneanesssnserarasaesaes $2,366,878
Public facilities management foundation ..o 13,304
School Tunch.....oeeernveenenes et vreeerenriasrans rrerereseeasnenesesenraneneres enesrinas 22.609
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type ACtVItIES «...ooveevrrrsvicrnniersvecniescnns $2.402.791

Construction Commitments

The City has active construction projects as of June 30, 2008. At year end, the City’s commitments
with contractors are as follows:

Project Commitment
Governmental Activities:
SChoo] CORSIUCTION. 1rvrrievieeeieevercreereerrsseesereneressesersesereseeseseseassseser $ 2,752,554
Playgrotnds. ..o s 314.356
TOMAL oot nne e rasseserese e ser e e nrra et e bac s e bbb s sbs s e en s $ 3,066910

Business-Type Activities:
Sewer Plainfield Pike project ... 3 3,000
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EXHIBIT K

. DETANLED NOTES (CONTINUED)

D. Interfund Accounts
1. Interfund Payables and Receivables
A summary of interfund balances as of June 30, 2008 is as follows:
CORRESPONDING
FUND DUE FROM DUETO

MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND:

School Unrestricted Fund ... oeoveeeoneceeeeneos N/A $ 1,316,385 $

Senior Services Fund N/A 2,819

Community Development Fund ... N/A 64,552

Public Service Funds N/A 145,986

Economic Development Fund.......oovs N/A 29,740

WIA Job Development Fund.............. N/A 49,298

Budget Stabilization Fund......cccooeeev... N/A 268,144

Hospital Stabilization Fund ... N/A 1,186,860

Private Purpose Trust Funds.............. N/A 3,643

OPEB Trust Fund ..o N/A 275,669

Internal Service Fund........ovecenvvnnseneas N/A 20747

Sewer FUNd .o ssarcsrssssssnsesinns N/A 140,147
TOTAL GENERAL FUND.....ccooovervrrsmereecscnsennnes 2.020.714 1,670,000
SCHOOL. SPECIAL REVENUE

UNRESTRICTED: . .

General Fund ... N/A 1,316,385

School Lunch Fund N/A 544,762

Restricted School Fun{is N/A 891.826 187.436
TOTAL SCHOOL SPECIAL REVENUE

UNRESTRICTED ... 1.436.588 1,503.821
SEWER:

General Fund .o N/A 140,147
NONMAJOR FUNDS:

Restricted School FUnds....ovveeeceeeeenenecsnns School Unrestricted Fund 187.436 891,826

Budget Stabilization Fund....cccvvmeiennanen, General Fund 268,144

Community Development Block Grant Fund General Fund 64,552

Public Service Funds .....cccommemenmmrcnnonn General Fund 145,986

Hospital Stabilization Fund........ General Fund 1,186,860

WIA Job Development Fund...... General Fund 49,298

Economic Development Fund.... General Fund 29,740

Sentor Services Funds ..oooeeeee. General Fund 2,819

Senior Services FURdS ..o rcnrrrnesneninrens N/A 10,000 10.000
TOTAL NONMAJOR FUNDS.....coc et 1,384,296 1,462,365
ENTERPRISE FUND:

School Lunch FUng e ecceecssiissians School Unrestricted Fund 544,762
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND:

Insurance Risk Management Fund........ccnn. General Fund 207.471
FIDUCIARY FUNDS:

OPEB Trust Fund... General Fund 275,669

Private Purpose Trust Educatton

Scholarships.... General Fund 3.643

TOTAL FIDUCIARY FUNDS oot 275,669 3.643
GRAND TOTAL .oevveemreerarieermeereermeersacsssissesnses $.5.324 738 5324 738
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EXHIBIT K

T, DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

D. Interfund Accounts {(Continued)

1. Interfund Payables and Receivables (Continued)

All interfund balances result from time lag between the dates payments occur between funds for
short-term internal financing,

2. Interfund Transfers
A summary of interfund transfers as of June 30, 2008 is as follows:
CORRESPONDING TRANSFERS TRANSFERS
FUND IN OuT
GENERAL FUNI:
Excise Tax Phase Qut Fund........ N/A $ 12,245917 $
School Unrestricted Fund............ N/A 85,413,637
Budget Stabilization Fund .......... N/A 1,186,860
Public Service Funds .......cocoee.. N/A 154,256
TOTAL GENERAL FUND.........c..... 12400173 86,600,497
SCHOOL UNRESTRICTED:
General Fund........c..oervrveecececeeeene N/A 85,413,637
NONMAJOR FUNDS:
Budget Stabilization Fund........... General Fand 1,186,860
Public Service Funds....coerveeenes Public Service Funds 1,963 156,219
Excise Tax Phase Out Fund........ General Fund 12.243.917
TOTAL NONMAJOR FUNDS.......... 1.188.823 12402136
GRAND TOTAIL $ 99002633 8 99002633
Transfers are used to account for the financing by the general fund of various programs and
activities in other funds, and administration of other funds by the general fund.
3. Advances
ADVANCE CORRESPONDING
FROM: FUND AMOUNT
General Fund School Special Revenue Unrestricted $3,193,052

The City’s General Fund advanced the School Special Revenue Unrestricted Fund, $3,193,052
during the year to finance the over expenditure of the School Special Revenue Unrestricted Fund
budget. The School Special Revenue Unrestricted Fund has a plan in place to repay the advance
over the next four years.
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EXHIBIT K

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

E. Short-Term Obligations ~ Bond Anticipatien Notes

The City uses bond anticipation notes during the construction period of various public projects prior to

the issuance of the bonds at the completion of the project.

Short-term obligation activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, JUNE 30,
TYPE OF OBLIGATION 2007 ADDITIONS REDUCTIONS 2008
Bond Anficipation Note ... rvcreccrmricscsccecrcniiss - $ 6.700.000 $_6,700,000 b -

F. Changesin Long-Term Obligations
1. Summary of Changes

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations during the fiscal year:

Governmental Activities:
BALANCE BALANCE
ORIGINAL  DATEOF DATE OF  INTEREST JULY 1, JUNE 30, CURRENT
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT ISSUE MATURITY RATE 2007 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2008 PORTION
GENERAL OBLIGATION: . . . ‘ ‘ . .

Public improvement  $ 17,540,000  06/15/98 07/15/18 4460% § 1,600,000 3% $ 780,000 $ 820,000 § 820,000

Public improvement 16,115,000  11/15/99 11/15/19  4.5-545% 2,100,000 660,000 1,440,000 700,000

Refunding ........e.... 13,320,000  12/01/00 07/01/15  4.5-5.5% 7,660,000 960,000 6,700,000 955,000

Public improvement 27,050,000  02/15/04 02/1524  2.0-5.0% 22,985,000 1,355,000 21,630,000 1,355,600

Advance refunding 22,280,000  05/13/05 07/15/19  3.0-5.0% 22,215,000 105,000 22,110,060 110,600

Puoblic improvements 23,900,000  6/14/06 4/1/2026  4.0-5.0% 22,905,000 805,000 22,100,000 840,000

Public improvemenis 13,075,000  6/18/08 7/1/2028 4.0-5.0% 13.075.000 13.073.000

Total General Obligation BOnds. ......ccvivenvninniseiminissesrmsesresssresesiares 79,465,000 13,075,000 4,665,000 87,875,000 4,780,000
BOE PYEIIUINS oottt cee e e e ssesaeca s easee s eie s et sos st s bbb st e snanasssnrenas 2,720,025 358,693 150.351 2,928,367
TOTAL BONDS AND RELATED LIABILITIES .....oovvvcrcnrernsrnenseresrensserens 82.185.025 13,433,693 4815351 90,803,367 4.780.000
LEASES PAYABLE:

Public Facilities Management

Foundation Lease 5,130,000 11/01/60 11/0U/15 4.75-525% 3,510,600 315,000 3,195,000 335,000

Musical Instruments 114,811 10/16/06  12/0110 7.81% 89,153 19,840 69,313 21,390

Modular buildings. 189,573  09/01/G2 09/01/07 485% 7,185 7,185 -

Telephone equipment 95,484  0R/01/02 08/01/07 0.0% 1,591 1,591 -

Vehicle - trucks..... 1,478,889  10/31/0F 10/31/07 5.4% 234899 234,899 -

Total Leases Payable ...t sseses e s e smmsmesess 3,842 828 578,515 3264313 356,380
TOTAL BONDS AND NOTES AND RELATED LIABILITIES.......ccovveiner 86,027,853 13,433,693 5,393 866 94,067,680 5,136,350
COMPENSATED ABSENCES ..ot nimrssss s irssssessssssssssssessstsnssessos 9,722,401 3,883,490 3,179,015 10,426,876 2,359,556
DEFERRED SALARY ...ooovecvrvvrriirnne 349214 53,240 295,974 29,600
NET PENSION OBLIGATION L..ocooooviiicirianansnrssssrsisstsmsessssssssmassassresmeatosress oo 87,541,920 401,331 87,943 251
NET OPEB OBLIGATION ......coetrmvreseeaeesesrmsessnmsesserressimibmsebsbsras vaessssss s isassissisn - 554 048 554,048
CLAIMS AND JUDGMENTS ... oo verreceecerecmsions 60,000 60,000 30,000
TOTAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS .....ooeovocveerevoveresnrcssnsrsssseorsnnesmnsmeneees 2183, 701388 § 18272562 § 8626121 5193347820 & 7.553.346

All long-term HLiabilities are generally liquidated by the General Fund.
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EXHIBIT K
CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

F. Changes in Long-Term Oblications (Continued)

1. Summary of Changes (Continued)

Capital assets obtained from capital leases totaled $7,567,356.

Business-Type Activifies:

BALANCE BALANCE
ORIGINAL DATEOF DATEOQF INTEREST HILY 1, JUNE 30, CURRENT
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT ISSUE MATURITY  RATE 2007 ADDITIONS  DEDUCTIONS 2008 PORTION
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SEWER:
RI Clean Water...... $ 3,242,000  09/01493 09/01/15 3.0% $ 1458900 §% $ 162100 $ 1,296,800 $ 162,100
RI Clean Water...... 700,000  08/25/99 09/01/15 3.0% 454,352 45,065 409,287 46,333
RI Clean Water...... 2,000,000 11/13/03 09/01/24 0.0% 1,800,000 100,000 1,700,000 100,600
RI Clean Water...... 3,400,000  12/30/04 09/01/11 0.0% 2,428,000 486,000 1,942,000 486,000
RI Clean Water...... 900,000  09/01/05 09/01/25 3.0% 890,000 10,000 880,000 10,000
RI Clean Water...... 3,000,000  09/01/07 09/01/28 3.0% 3.000.000 3.000.000
TOTAL SEWER ..ot eeescins PO 7,031,252 3,000,000 803,165 9,228,087 804,433
PUBLIC FACILITIES MANAGEMENT
FOUNDATION:
Certificates of
patticipation .......... 5,130,600 11A01/60 13/01/15  4.75-525% 3,510,000 315,000 3,195,000 335,000
Certification of participation unamortized discount.................cooiviionn. (25.157) {4.900) (20.257)
TOTAL BONDS AND RELATED LIABILITIES......ooiivvvivie e e 10,516,095 3,000,060 1,113,265 12,402,830 1,139,433
COMPENSATED ABSENCES. ..ot eeteremererm e e secrssesessecs s s sessesssenasesnes 27,563 428 27,99i 2,79%
DEFERRED SALARY oot e sn e s ettt v ceearan 1,500 1,560 150
TOTFAL BENTERPRISE FUNDS ........oviimrmterreeressiessesremsesrasrms st sessscsasansnns $ 10545158 $ 3000428 S 1113265 3 12432321 $1142382

The following is a summary of annual debt service requirements to maturity for the retirement of
general obligation debt, leases and certificates of participation:

BUSINESS-TYPE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES
YEAR GENERAL LEASES CERTIFICATES OF
ENDING OBLIGATION DEBT PAYABLE PARTICIPATION CLEAN WATER BONDS

JUNE30, PRINCIPAL  INTEREST PRINCIPAL  INTEREST PRINCIPAL.  INTEREST PRINCIPAL.  INTEREST

2009 $ 4780,000 $ 3,716435 $ 356390 § 158,032 $ 335000 § 152,618 § 804433 5 120928

2010 5,285,000 3,813,838 373,061 139,795 350,000 136,053 955,737 128,927
2011 5,425,000 3,588,898 389,862 120,652 365,000 118,710 957,077 117,078
2012 5,575,000 3343489 385,000 100,143 385,000 100,143 956,454 105,161
2013 5,725,000 3,091,524 405,000 80,393 405,000 80,393 523,870 93,904
20142018 28395000 11,401,537 1,355,000 108,410 1,355,000 108,410 2,200,516 321,283
20192023 21,050,000 5,259,895 1,550,000 177,662
20042028 10,650,000 1,284,553 1,130,000 62,028
2019 990,000 23,513 150,000 1.598

TOTALS § 87875000 % 35523682 $ 3264313 % 707425 $ 3195000 $ 696327 $ 9228087 $ 1128566
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Hl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

F.

Changes in Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

2

4.

5

Statutory Debt Limitations
Debt Limit

Except as explained below, under Rhode Island law the City may not, without special statutory
authorization, incur any debt which would increase its aggregate indebtedness not otherwise excepted by
law to an amount greater than 3% of the taxable property of the City. Deducted from the computation of
aggregate indebtedness is the amount of any borrowing in anticipation of taxes authorized by law and the
amount of any sinking funds maintained by the City. There is currently no outstanding debt of the City
subject to the 3% debt limit. The current 3% debt limit of the City is $259 million based on taxable
property as of December 31, 2006, of approximately $8.6 billion.

The State of Rhode Island General Assembly ("General Assembly™) may by special act permit the City to
incur indebtedness outside the 3% debt limit. Bonds issued either within the 3% debt limit or by special
legislation adopted by the General Assembly authorizing the City to incur debt are subject to referendum
by the electors of the City. On June 30, 2008, the City had $87,875,000 of debt outstanding, none of
which is subject to the 3% debt limit.

In addition to debt authorized within the 3% debt limit and debt authorized by special act of the General
Assembly, Rhode Island General Laws Section 45-12-11 authorizes the State Director of Administration,
upon petition by a municipality, to authorize such municipality to incur indebtedness in excess of the 3%
debt limit whenever the Director shall determine that the sums appropriated by the municipality or its
funds available are insufficient to pay the necessary expenses of the municipality. The City has not
requested the State Director of Administration to authorize indebtedness of the City under Section 45-12-
11.

Prior Year Debt Refundings

In prior years, the Town has defeased a bond issue by creating a separate irrevocable trust fund. New
debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U.S. government securities that were
placed in the trust fund, The investments and fixed earnings from the investments are sufficient to fully
service the defeased debt unti] the debt is cailed or matures. For financial reporting purposes, the debt has
been considered defeased and, therefore, removed as a liability from the Town’s financial statements. As
of June 30, 2008, the amount of defeased debt outstanding but removed from the Town’s financial
statements amounted to $12,180,000.

Authorized/Unissued Bonds
The amount of authorized, unissued bonds is as follows:

General purposes $ 25225022
Schools 19.401.228
TOTAL $ 44626250
Deferred Salary

Deferred salary represents an agreement Cranston Public Schools made with the teachers union in 1992.
Under the agreement any teacher who was employed by the school system prior to and inclusive of the
1991-1992 school year is eligible, upon departure from the Cranston Public School system, for a stipend.
The amount of the stipend is based on the salary step held by the teacher during the 1991-1992 school
year. The deferral, not to exceed $1,500 per teacher will be paid in a lump sum upon each teacher’s
separation from service. In the event a teacher dies while in the employ of the Cranston Public Schools
the benefit will be paid to the teacher’s estate. As of June 30, 2008, there were 242 teachers eligible for
the benefit, with an outstanding balance of $295,974. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008,
$53,240 was paid for these benefits from the school unrestricted fund.
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EXHIBIT K

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

V. OTHER INFORMATION

A.

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to public official liability, police liability, Board of
Education legal liability, theft or impairment of assets, errors and omissions, injury to employees and
natural disasters. The City is self-insured in most areas of risk, subject to certain third party “stop loss”
coinsurance. Self-insured risks include general liability, property and casualty, workers’ compensation,
unemployment and employee health and life insurance claims, Settled claims have not exceeded
commercial coverage in any of the past three years, and there has not been any significant reductions in
insurance coverage from amounts held in prior years.

The City’s health insurance program provides coverage to the City’s employees and retirees through
Healthmate and Blue Cross - Blue Shield of Rhode Island (BC/BS), United Healthcare and Delta Dental
of Rhode Island. The City’s program is a self-insured program with BC/BS, United Healthcare and
Delta Dental acting as third-party agents for the City in the payment of the various claim plans used by
the City.

The City of Cranston contributes to a separate account an amount per covered employee which would
otherwise have been paid to an insurance carrier. These amounts are determined by an independent
third party consultant hired by the City of Cranston who works with the provider to examine past
experience and determine an adequate amount for each type of plan offered by the City. Factors
considered by the plan administrator include the amount of claims paid during the previous year, claims
administration costs and projected insurance industry inflation rates. The City of Cranston, including
Cranston Public Schools, incurred approximately $29 million for fiscal year 2008 under this plan.

The claims liabilities reported in the general and school department funds are related to the self-
insurance program and are based upon the provisions of GASB Statements No. 10 and 30, which require
that a liability for estimated claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) be recorded. The amount of claim
accrual is based on the ultimate costs of settling the claim, which include past experience data, inflation,
and other future economic and societal factors and incremental claim adjustment expenses, net of
estimated subrogation recoveries. The claim accrual does not include other allocated or unallocated
claims adjustment expenses.

In order to avoid catastrophic losses, the City “reinsures” the program by purchasing insurance known as
“stop-loss insurance” from BCS Insurance Co, and United Healthcare Services. Two types of “stop-loss
insurance” are purchased: 1) individual stop-loss; and 2) aggregate stop-loss, with both provided
through the Plan Administrator. Under the individual stop-loss insurance, the City pays the first
$200,000 of claims for individual employees or dependents. Any charges accrued by an individual in
excess of $200,000 in a fiscal year are thereafter reimbursed by BCS Insurance Co. and United
Healthcare Services. The aggregate stop-loss is designed to protect the City for multiple large claims
which may not reach the individual stop-loss attachment point ($200,000). The aggregate stop-loss limit
is $2,000,000 per claim.

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets,
errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The City established the Cranston
Claims Committee (an internal service fund) to account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss.

The City records liabilities for self-insured claims reported if it is probable that a loss has been incurred
and the amount can be reasonably estimated. The City has established a liability based on historical
trends of previous years, where available, and attorney’s estimates of pending matters and lawsuits in

which the City is involved.
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EXHIBIT K

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IV, OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

A.

Risk Management (Continued)

Changes in the self-insurance liability for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007 are as
follows:

2008 2007
JUIY 1 e sne s i $ 8,158,240 $ 3,345,795
Add: incurred claims.......eceenieceeseerenseserserenaes 28,648,341 33,970,653
Less: payments of claims attributable to events
of both the current and prior fiscal years:

Health and life ........ccovvrinnninnininn, 29,865,301 28,781,177

Other claims ......ooorcniivniininiini, 4,016,608 377.031
JUNE 30t s $ 2924672 $ 8158240

The liabilities above have not been discounted to their present value. Incurred claims represent the total
of a provision for events of the current fiscal year and any change in the provision for events of the prior
fiscal years.

Lease of Wastewater Treatment Facility

The City has entered into a Wastewater Treatment Facility Lease and Service Agreement with Triton,
LLC/U.S. Filter/Veolia Water (the "Company"). The terms of the agreement include among others that
the City will lease to the Company its Wastewater Treatment System for 25 years. The City will remain
owner of the system and will continue to establish and collect all sewer fees. The Company will be
responsible for providing wastewater treatment services to the City for that time period; operating and
maintaining the City's wastewater treatment facility, pumping stations, force mains, sewer interceptors
and the rest of the collection system; designing, constructing and testing certain system improvements;
and administering the City's municipal industrial pre-treatment program ("MIPP"),

The contract required the Company to pay the City a one-time payment as consideration for the lease.
The payment of $48.0 million represents a prepayment of the lease payments due to the City over the
next 25 years. These lease payments are "earned” over the life of the lease. Accordingly, deferred
revenue has been recorded in the Sewer Enterprise Fund which will be realized on a straight-line basis
over the life of the lease (25 years).

At June 30, 2008, the balance of unearned revenue related to this was $26,880,000, which is comprised
of a short-term portion of $1,920,000 and a long-term portion of $24,960,000.

During the term of the agreement, the City pays the Company a service fee, which is calculated based on
definitive components and amounts, as adjusted in accordance with guidelines established in the
agreement. The service fee is generally fixed at the beginning of each fiscal year. During 2008, the City
paid service fees totaling $13 million. The City also recognized 4% of the lease payment ($1,920,000)
as revenue for the year ended June 30, 2008.
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

C.

D.

Commitments and Litigation

Construction and other significant commitments have been reported as reserve for commitments in the
fund equity section of the balance sheet.

Amounts received or receivable from Federal and State grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may
constitute a liability of the applicable fimds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits and the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable. In the opinion of the City attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

Emplovee Retirement Systems
Summary

The City contributes to five defined benefit pension plans - the Police and Fire Employees' Pension
Plan of the City of Cranston ("PFERS"), a single-employer plan; the Municipal Employees’
Retirement System ("MERS"), an agent multiple-employer plan; the Employees' Retirement System
of the State of Rhode Island ("ERS"), a cost-sharing multiple employer plan; the National
(Industrial) Pension Plan, a cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan; and the New England
Teamsters & Trucking Industry Pension Plan, a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. The PFERS is
presented in the accompanying financial statements as a fiduciary fund. A separate report on the
Police and Fire Employees’ Pension Plan is not available; it is audited as part of the City’s audit.
MERS, ERS, the National Industrial Pension Plan and the New England Teamsters & Trucking
Industry Pension Plan are not included in the City's financial statements.

1. Police and Fire Emplovees’ Pension Plan of the City of Cranston (“PFERS”)

a. Summary of Sienificant Accounting Policies and Plan Assef Matters

(i) Basis of Accounting

PFERS’ financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Contributions
are recognized when due, pursuant to formal commitments and contract requirements and
investment income is recognized when earned and expenses (benefits, administration and
refunds) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.
Administrative costs are generally financed through investment earnings.

(i)} Valuation of Investments

Investments are valued at fair value. There are no investments of 5% or greater in any
one organization.

b, Plan Description and Contribution Information

As of July 1, 2008, the plans” membership consists of:

Fire Police Total
Retirees, disability retirees and beneficiaries
receiving benefits ... 217 201 418
Active plan members vested..........ervrvrrereerrorenss 56 25 81
Active plan members non vested........coneeees m - -
TOTALS oot ssssnsssess senss 273 220 A99
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IV, OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

D.

Emplovee Retirement Systems (Continued)
1. Police and Fire Emplovyees’ Pension Plan of the City of Cranston (“PFERS”) (Continued)
b. Plan Description and Contribution Information (Continued)

C,

PFERS is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers all Police and Fire
Department personnel hired before July 1, 1995. The Plan provides retirement, disability and
survivorship benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. A member may retire after 20
years of service. The pension is equal to 2 ¥4% of the member’s final compensation for each
year of service up to 20 years and increases 2% for each year (up to 10 years) in excess of 20
years. An additional 5% of final compensation is added to the pension at 55 years of age. A
deferred pension is available to employees completing 10 years of service.

Contributions

Police personnel are required to contribute 10% of their base salary to the pension plan and fire
personnel are required to contribute 10.5% of their base salary and longevity to the pension
plan.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2008 (the date of the most recent actuarial valuation)

was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 278,857,000
Actuarial value of plan assets 50.961.000
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 227,896,000
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 18.3%
Covered payroll {active plan members) $ 6,093,000
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 3,740.3%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, and mortality. Amounts determined regarding the
funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to basic financial statements, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial labilities for benefits.
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EXHIBIT K.

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

D.

Employee Retirement Systems (Continued)
1. Police and Fire Emplovees’ Pension Plan of the City of Cranston (“PFERS”) (Continued)

d  Annual Pension Costs and Net Pension Obligation

ANNUAL
PERIOD REQUIRED ACTUAL PERCENTAGE
ENDED CONTRIBUTION _ CONTRIBUTION  CONTRIBUTION
June 30, 2003 $24,945,408 $14,949,999 60%
June 30, 2004 21,877,449 23,876,569 109%
June 30, 2005 22,147,958 20,024,158 90%
June 30, 2006 21,723,021 21,339,876 98%
June 30, 2007 21,723,021 21,723,021 100%
June 30, 2008 20,785,343 19,889,000 96%

The changes in the net pension obligation of PFERS as of June 30, 2008, were as follows:

Annual required contribution

-------------

...........................

A Summary of Annual Pension Costs, Contributions and Net Pension Obligation (NPO) follows:

$ 20,785,343

Interest on net pension obligation ..........nnninne 7,003,353
Adjustments 10 ARC ...t asnns ( 7.498.365)
Annual pension COSE ... 20,290,331
Contribution Made..........covemvrrrersmcirenecssis e (19.889.060)
Change in net pension obligation.......ccovvvvvinennininnes ( 401,331)
Net pension obligation - July 1, 2007 .....orrrerrevrirrere 87.541.920
Net pension obligation - June 30, 2008 .............c.co.o..... $ 87943251
ANNUAL
PENSION PERCENTAGE NET
YEAR COST OF APC PENSION
ENDING (APC) CONTRIBUTED OBLIGATION
2008 $ 20,290,331 98% $ 87,943,251
2007 20,709,227 105% 87,541,920
2006 20,788,384 100% 88,555,714
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EXHIBIT K

V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

D. Emplovee Retirement Systems (Continued)

1. Police and Fire Employees’ Pension Plan of the City of Cranston (“PFERS”) (Continued)

e

Actuarial Assumptions

The information presented as historical trend information was determined as part of the
actuarial valuation as of the date indicated in the tabulation. Additional information as of the

latest valuation is as follows:

VALUATION DATE......coocmmicnnaniseissinnas
ACTUARIAL COST METHOD..........ccccecuu.
ASSET VALUATION METHOD ........ccoevnie

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS:
Investment Rate of Retarn. . evervvvcvecvnenvcineciinn

Cost-of-living adjustment.........coeeriiinanne
INFIALOM v vt eerersesenaeseaenes

AMORTIZATION METHOD .....ccovveuene

REMAINING AMORTIZATION PERIOD ....
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

D.

Employee Retirement Systems (Continued)
2. Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island (“MERS”)

a.  Plan Description

Upon the date of hire, all full-time City, non-certified school employees and police and fire
personnel hired on or after July 1, 1995, are eligible to participate in MERS, an agent muitiple-
employer plan administered by the Employees” Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island.
Employees who retire at or after age 58 with 10 years of credited service or at any age after 30
years of credited service are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life. The
retirement benefit is 2% of final average salary. Final average salary is the three highest
consecutive years of eamed salary excluding overtime, bonuses or severance pays. MERS also
provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by State Statute. Financial
statements for MERS can be obtained by contacting the Employees’ Retirement System of the
State of Rhode Island, 40 Fountain Street, Providence, RI 02903, or by accessing their website

at www.ersri.org.

Funding Policy

Covered employees are required by Rhode Island General Law Section 45-21-41 to
contribute 6% of their salary to the plan and contribute an additional 1% for a cost-of-living
provision. Annual required contributions are actuarially determined for each separate
employer and are assessed to each as a percentage of their participating employees’ payroll.
The annual required contribution covers normal cost and, where applicable, a payment to
amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Normal cost is determined using the entry
age normal cost method. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is amortized as a level
percent of payroll over a close period of 30 years measured from June 30, 1999. Police
contribute 10% and fire personnel are required to contribute 11.5% of their salary with the
excess contribution (1.5%) offsetting the City’s required contribution. For 2008, the City’s
contribution rate for police personnel was 18.46% and 19.02% for fire personnel, resulting in
a net contribution by the City for fire personnel of 17.52%.

Contributions

The City’s contribution rate for general employees was 3.14%.

YEAR ANNUAL
ENDED REQUIRED ACTUAL PERCENTAGE
JUNE30. CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION
General Employees ‘
2006 $ 9,541 $ 9,541 180%
2007 395,156 395,156 100%
2008 705,295 705,295 100%
Police
2006 $ 823,426 $ 823426 100%
20607 1,024,180 1,024,180 100%
2008 1,108,565 1,108,565 0%
Fire
2006 $ 932,013 $ 952,013 100%
2007 1,247,321 1,247,321 100%
2008 1,313,050 1,313,050 100%
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EXHIBIT K
CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

D. Employee Retirement Systems (Continued)
2. Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island (“MERS”) (Continued)

d. Actuarial Methods and Significant Assumptions

The State used the entry age normal method to determine both the actuarial accrued liabilities
and annual required contributions to each member of the plan. Pension assets are valued at
their fair value as established by quotations from applicable national securities exchanges.
Valuations of accrued liabilities, pension assets, and annual required contributions for the
Municipal Plan are performed annually as of June 30.

Significant actuarial assumptions used in each valuation are summarized as follows:

Asset appreciation: 8.25% annually

Salary increases: 3.00% annually

Cost of living adjustments: 3.00%, not compounded
Retirement probability:

100% at age 70 or upon eligibility (100% at age 60 or upon eligibility - police)

Mortality:

Healthy members — 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table

Disabled members — PBGC Table Va for disabled members eligible for Social Security
disability benefits

Disability: Probabilities ranging from .05% at age 25 to .71% at age 60

3. Employees’ Retirement Svstem of the State of Rhode Island (“ERS”

a. Plan Description

All full-time teachers including superintendents, principals, school nurses and certain other
school officials (“classified employees™) in the Cranston Public Schools participate in the
ERS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer public retirement system. ERS provides retirement,
death and disability and health care benefits, all of which are established by State Statute.
ERS issues a publicly available financial statement that includes the financial statements and
required supplementary information for ERS. That report may be obtained by contacting the
Employees’ Retirement System of Rhode Island, 40 Fountain Street, Providence, RI 02903,
or by accessing their website at www.etsri.org.

Classified employees who retire at or after age 60 with 10 years of credited service on or
before July 1, 2005, or at any age with 28 years of credited service are entitled to a retirement
benefit payable monthly for life. The retirement benefit is a percentage of final average
salary per year of credited service with a maximum benefit of 80% of “final average™ salary.
Final average salary is the three highest consecutive years of earned salary excluding overtime,
bonuses or severance pays. The percent of carnings related to each year of credited service is as
follows:
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EXHIBIT K

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IV. QTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

D.

Employee Retirement Systems (Continued)

3.

Emplovees’ Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island (“ERS™) (Continued)

a. Plan Description (Confinued)

Years of Credited Service Percent/Year
1-10 1.7%
11-20 1.9%
21-34 3.0%
35 2.0%

For classified employees who were hired after July 1, 2005, or for current employees with
less than 10 years of contributory services on or before July 1, 2005, who attain at least 10
years of credited service, will become entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for
life. The retirement benefit is a percentage of final average salary per year of credited service
with a maximum benefit of 75% of “final average” salary. Final average salary is the three
highest consecutive years of earned salary excluding overtime, bonuses or severance pays. An
unreduced retirement benefit becomes available at age 65 and 10 years of service; actuarially
reduced retirement benefits become available at age 55 and 20 years of service. The percent of
earnings related to each year of credited service is as follows:

Years of Credited Service Percent/Year
1-10 1.60%
11-20 1.80%
21-25 2.00%
26-30 2.25%
3137 2.50%

Funding Policy

Rhode Island General Laws set the contribution rates for participating State employees at
9.5% of salary. Annual contributions by both employees and the State on behalf of those
employees are determined by actuaries and assessed as a percentage of participants’ payroll.
Plan members are required by State statue to contribute 9.5% of their salary to the plan. The
School Department contributions are based on a percentage of annual compensation of active
members, half of which is payable by the State of Rhode Island.

Contributions

The School Department's required contributions and actual contributions made for the years

- ended June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006 were as follows:

PERIOD ANNUAL
ENDED REQUIRED ACTUAL PERCENTAGE
JUNE 30, CONTRIBUTION _ CONTRIBUTION __ CONTRIBUTION
2006 $ 6,163,913 $ 6,163,913 100%
2007 7,951,182 7,951,182 100%
2008 9,374,331 9,374,331 100%
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EXHIBIT K

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

D.

Emplovee Retirement Systems (Continued)

4,

National (Industrial) Pension Plan

a.

Plan Description

Upon the date of hire, most of the City’s public works' employees and all School Department
bus drivers are eligible to participate in the National (Industrial) Pension Fund, a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit plan. The plan also provides the following types of pensions
which pay benefits to a retired participant during their lifetime and thereafier pay benefits to the
participant’s surviving spouse or other beneficiary: husband-and-wife pension, survivor’s
option pension, and 120 certain payments option pension. The Plan also provides for a
widow/widower’s pension. Employees who retire at or after age 62 with at least 5 years of
pension credit and have earned at least one of the years of pension credit during the period that
their employer is contributing to the pension fund are eligible for benefits through the regular
pension that is payable monthly for life. The retirement benefit is determined by the highest
contribution rate at which the employee earned pension credit and the years of pension credits
they have earned (up to a maximum of 30 years of pension credits). The Plan also provides
death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by the Board of Trustees of the Pension
Fund. Financial statements for the Plan can be obtained by contacting the Laborers’ National
(Industrial) Pension Fund, 905 16™ Street, N.W., Washington, DC, 20106.

Funding Policy

Covered employees are not required to contribute to the Plan. For Fiscal Year ended June 30,
2008, the City was required to contribute $1.09 per hour, and the School Department was
required to contribute $.54 per hour for each hour worked by the employees to the Plan.
Contributions

Contributions for the past three years were as follows:

YEAR ANNUAL

ENDED REQUIRED ACTUAL PERCENTAGE

JUNE30, CONTRIBUTION  CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION
City
2006 $ 132,843 $ 132,843 100%
2007 139,661 139,661 100%
2008 155,080 155,080 100%

Schoo}l

Department

2006 $ 70,905 $ 70905 100%
2007 85,540 85,540 100%
2008 92,833 92.833 100%

66



EXHIBITK

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) -

D.

E.

Employee Retirement Systems (Continued)

5. New England Teamsters & Trucking Industry Pension Plan

a.

b.

C.

Plan Description

Upon the date of hire, most workers within City Hall and other clerical staff throughout the City
are eligible to participate in the New England Teamsters & Trucking Industry Pension Plan, a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. Benefits under the plan are provided
through a trust fund. A copy of the annual report can be obtained by contacting the trustees at:
New England Teamsters & Trucking Industry Pension Fund, 1 Wall Street, Burlington, MA
01803.

Funding Policy

Covered employees are currently not required to contribute to the Plan. For the Fiscal Year
ended June 30, 2008, the City was required to contribute $.60 per hour for each hour worked
by the employees to the Plan.

Contributions
YEAR  ANNUAL
ENDED REQUIRED ACTUAL PERCENTAGE
JUNE 30, CONTRIBUTION  CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION
2006 $ 160,662 $ 160,662 100%
2007 165,352 165,352 100%
2008 176,198 176,198 100%

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) — Public Safety Employees

1. Plan Description

The City maintains and administers a single-employer OBEB benefit plan that covers all public
safety employees. The plan provides health benefits and life insurance benefits to eligible retired
police and fire employees and their beneficiaries. The plans provisions may be amended by the
City and the Trustees of the plan. The trust is accounted for as an OPBEP trust fund in the City’s
financial statements. A separate report on the OPEB Plan is not available.

a.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

Basis of Accounting

The OPEB trust fund financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
Contributions are recognized when they are due, pursuant to formal commitments and
contractual requirements. Investment income is recognized when earned. Expenses (benefits
and administration) are recognized when they are due and payable in accordance with terms
of the plan. Administrative costs are generally financed through investment earnings.

67



EXHIBIT K
CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IV, OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

E. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) — Public Safety Emplovees (Continued)-

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters (Continued)

b.  Valuation of Investments

Investments are valued at fair value. Securities traded on national exchanges are valued at
the last reported sales price. There are no investments of 5% or greater in any one
organization.

¢. Classes of Emplovees Covered

As of July 1, 2008 (date of the last actuarial valuation) membership data was as follows:

Active employees 327
Inactive Employees:

Retirees 204
Spouses 166
Retiree (Life only) 120
Total plan members 817

3. Funding Policy

The City established an Irrevocable Trust Agreement (OPEB Trust) effective July 1, 2006, and
has started to pre-fund OPEB liabilities. The City pays certain medical premiums for a retiree
and certain dependents until they reach the age of 65 years unless they are not covered by
Medicare benefits, in that case, coverage continues for life. If 2 member dies before reaching
normal retirement age in the line of duty, the City pays the full cost of family medical coverage
(as in effect at the time of the member’s death) until the member’s normal retirement date. In
addition, the City pays the life insurance premium for its retirees on a plan ranging from $17,000
to $25,000, depending on the date of retirement.

4. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the
employer and employees who elect dependent coverage (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of finding that,
if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the
components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan,
and changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IV, OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

E. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) — Public Safety Employees (Continued)

4. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued)

Annual required contribution $ 3,606,418
Interest on net OPEB obligation -
Adjustment to annual required contribution -

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 3,606,418
Contributions made 3,515,766
Decrease in net OPEB obligation { 90,652)
Net OPEB asset - July 1, 2007 _ 176,411
Net OPEB asset - June 30, 2008 § 85759

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPEB obligation for 2008 is as follows:

Fiseal Percentage of Net
Year Annual Annual OPEB OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Asset
6/30/07 $ 3,515,765 105% $ 176,411
6/30/08 3,606,418 102% 259,371

5. Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2008 (the date of the most recent actuarial valuation) was

as follows:
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $52,191,492
Actuarial value of plan assets 505,545
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 51,685,947
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 1.0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) n/a
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll n/a

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to basic financial statements, presents multiyear
trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial liabilities for benefits.
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

E.

F.

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPER) — Public Safety Employees (Continued)

6.

Actnarial Methods and Assumptions

The accompanying schedules of employer contributions present trend information about the amounts
contributed to the plan by employers in comparison to the ARC, an amount that is actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 43. The ARC represents a level
of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost for each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty
years.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time
of each valuation. Assets are valued at fair market value. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

The projected unit credit cost method was used in the July 1, 2008 actuatial valuation. Actuarial
assumptions included an 8.0% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses). Only assets
that have been contributed to the OPEB Trust are considered available for liabilities for purposes of
the valuation. The City does use other assets to pay the liabilities on a pay-as-you-go basis at the
present time. The actuarial assumptions for healthcare cost trend is growth of 6% for 2008 and
declining by 1% per year until 5% is reached. The 5% growth is used on a go-forward basis. The
UAAL will be amortized over a closed thirty year period.

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) — Board of Education Employees

|

Plan Description

The City maintains and administers a single-employer OPEB benefit plan that covers all School
Department employees. The plan provides health benefits and dental insurance benefits to
eligible retired employees and their beneficiaries. The plans provisions may be amended by the
Cranston School Committee and the Trustees of the plan. The OPEB activity is accounted for in
the School Unrestricted Fund in the City’s financial statements. A separate report on the OPEB
Plan is not available.
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT'S (CONTINUED)

Iv. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

F. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) — Board of Education Employees (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

a.

Basis of Accountin

The OPEB activity is accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. Contributions are
recognized when they are due, pursuant to formal commitments and contractual requirements.
Investment income is recognized when earned. Expenses (benefits and administration) are
recognized when they are due and payable in accordance with terms of the plan.
Administrative costs are generally financed through the School Unrestricted Fund.

Valuation of Investments

Investments are valued at fair value. Securities traded on national exchanges are valued at
the last reported sales price. There are no investments of 5% or greater in any one
organization.

Classes of Emplovees Covered

As of July 1, 2007 (date of the last actuarial valuation) membership data was as follows:

Active employees 1,051
Inactive Employees:
Retirees 344

Total plan members

3. Funding Policy

The School Department has not yet established a Trust to pre-fund OPEB liabilities. The
amounts due for these benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The School Department pays
100% of the cost of individual health care insurance and dental insurance benefits for all retired
eligible employees retiring before September 1, 2005 until the employee reaches the age of 65. Cost
shares have been negotiated for teachers (5% of plan cost) and administrators (10% of plan cost)
retiring after September 1, 2005. No benefits are paid for employees retiring prior to 1988,
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EXHIBIT X

V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

F. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) — Board of Education Employees (Continued)

4. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Board of Education’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required
contribution of the employer and employees who elect dependent coverage (ARC), an amount

actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45.

The ARC

represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each
year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. The
following table shows the components of the Board of Education’s annual OPEB cost for the year,
the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the Board of Education’s net OPEB

obligation.

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual OPEB cost (expense)
Contributions made
Decrease in net OPEB obligation

Net OPEB asset - July 1, 2007

Net OPEB asset - June 30, 2008

$ 2,676,269

2,676,269
2122221
554,048

554

The Board of Education’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the
plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2008 is as follows:

Fiscal Percentage of
Year Annual Annual OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed

6/30/08 $ 2,676,269 79%

5. Funded Statas and Funding Progress

Net
OFEB

Obligation

$ 554,048

The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2007 (the date of the most recent actuarial valuation) was

as follows:
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $29,950,366
Actuarial value of plan assets -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 25,950,366
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) n/a
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll n/a
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

F. Other Post-Emplovment Benefits (OPEB) — Board of Education Emplovees (Continued)

5.

6.

Funded Status and Funding Progress (Continued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to basic financial statements, presents multiyear
trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The accompanying schedules of employer contributions present trend information about the amounts
contributed to the plan by employers in comparison to the ARC, an amount that is actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 43. The ARC represents a level
of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost for each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty
years.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time
of each valuation. Assets are valued at fair market value. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

The projected unit credit cost method was used in the July 1, 2007 actuarial valuation. Actuarial
assumptions included a 4.0% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses). Only assets
that have been contributed to an OPEB Trust are considered available for liabilities for purposes of
the valuation. The City does use other assets to pay the liabilities on a pay-as-you-go basis at the
present time. The actuarial assumptions for healthcare cost trend is growth of 5% for 2008. The 5%
growth is used on a go-forward basis. The UAAL will be amortized over a closed thirty year period.
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EXHIBITK

1V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

G. Police and Fire Emplovees’ Pension Plan and Other Post Emplovment Benefit {OPEB) Public

Safety Employees Plan — Financial Information

Pension and OPERB Statements

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISEAND)
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008
TOTAL
PENSION AND
OTHER POST- OTHER POST-
EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYMENT
PENSION BENEFITS BENEFITS
TRUST TRUST TRUST
FUNDS FUND FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 725,634 3 257,121 $ 982,755
Investments:
Rea! Estate Investment Trust 2,104,939 2,104,939
Equity Mutual Funds 26,995,896 26,995,896
Fixed ircome Index Mutual Fund 10,818,185 10,818,185
Bond Mutuat Funds 10,316,127 10,316,127
Total Investments 50,235,147 50,235,147
Due from other funds 275,669 275,668
TOTAL ASSETS 50,960,781 532,790 51,493,571
LIABILITIES
Accounts payabie 27,245 217,245
Deposits keld in custody for others -
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 21,245 27,245
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION AND OPEB
BENEFITS AND OTHER PURPOSES $ 50,960,781 $ 505,545 $ 51,466,326
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IV, OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

G. Police and Fire Employees’ Pension Plan and Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Public
Safety Employees Plan — Financial Information

Pension and OPEB Statements (Continued)

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN PENSION AND OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

TOTAL
PENSION AND
OTHER POST- OTHER POST-
EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYMENT
PENSION BENEFITS BENEFITS
TRUST TRUST TRUST
FUNDS FUND FUNDS
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Employer contributions $ 19,889,000 $ 3,515,766 $ 23,404,766
Plan member contributions 667,464 173,612 841,076
Total contributions 20,556,464 3,689,378 24,245,842
Investment income (loss):
Interest and dividends 66,483 11,270 77,753
Net depreciation in the fair value of investments (2,321.479) (2,321.479)
Total investment income (loss) (2,254,956) 11,270 (2,243,726)
TOTAL ADDITIONS 18,301,468 ' 3,700,648 - 22,002,116
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits 18,250,257 3,305,013 21,555,270
Administration expenses 462,132 17,760 479,892
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 18,712,389 3,322,773 22,035,162
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (410,921) 377,875 (33,046)
NET ASSETS - JULY 1, 2007 51,371,702 127,670 51,499,372
NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2008 $ 50,960,781 $ 505,545 5 51,466,326
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

H.

J.

On-Behalf Pavments

The amount recognized in the general fund intergovernmental revenues and education expenditures for
contributions made by the State on behalf of the City’s teachers to the Employees' Retirement System of
the State of Rhode Island was $5,810,883.

Required Supplementary Information

The Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual for the
General Fund and the School Unrestricted Fund are presented using the modified accrual basis of
accounting.

Budget - GAAP Reconciliation

A reconciliation of revenues, expenditures, and fimd balance between the accounting treatment required
by GAAP (Exhibit D), and budgetary requirements (RSI), is as follows:

GENERAL FUND SCHOOL DEPARTMENT FUND

FUND FUND
EXPENDITURES BALANCE REVENUES EXPENDITURES BALANCE

BALANCE, BUDGETARY BASIS

JUNE 30, 2008 ... eresresevesvssvinsimsreesrenns 9230405440 $ 22,103,405 $ 39351886 $130,548,041 3 (5,183,930)
Expenditures accounted for on the budgetary

basis associated with Education funds.........i. {125,328,548)
Encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2007

liquidated during the year ended June 30, 2008 ... 170,709
Encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2008

charged to budgetary expenditures. ..o (573,226) 573,226
Reclassifications to fransfers oit........oorcererecinna (1,186,860)
State Teachers’ Retirement on-behalf payment...... 5.810,883 5.810.883
BALANCE, GAAP BASIS - JUNE 30,2008 ........ $3104060741  § 22103405 $ 45162769  $135785698  $( 4.610.704)

Reclassifications to transfers out represents transfers to other funds that are budgeted as a line item in
the general fund.

Subsequent Events

On August 7, 2008, the Rhode Island Health and Education Building Corporation issued $24,675,000 of
Revenue Bonds of which $7,000,000 were on behalf of the City of Cranston. These Bonds have an
interest rate ranging from 3.75% to 6.0% and are maturing on April 1, 2029. These bonds were issues to
fund school capital projects.

On December 15, 2008, the City Council ratified a three-year contract for Fiscal Years 09-11 with the
Laborer’s International Union of North America. The contract calls for a 0%, 2.9% and 3.0% increase
in wages for each of the fiscal years, respectively.

Subsequent to June 30, 2008, the stock market experienced a significant decline in value. The pension
committee and Legislative Council continue to monitor its investments closely in accordance with its
investment policy and asset allocation.

On October 3, 2008, FDIC deposit insurance temporarily increased from $100,000 to $250,000 per

depositor through December 31, 2009,
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RSI-1

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

GENERAL FUND
SCHEPULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

ORIGINAL FENAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
REVENUES:
General property taxes... ... ....coovicie e vvi i $ 154,041,432 $ 154,041,432 $ 155213411 $ 1,171,979
Intergovermmental ..........oiiie e e e e 22,522,973 22,722,973 21,141,131 (1,581.842)
Charges for Services:

Ficenses and permils... ... .oocvirreriors crmeen e 4,022,580 4,022 580 2,808,754 (1,213.826)

Fines and forfeitures 1,550,000 1,550,000 £,767,805 217,805

Bepartmental... ... [N 9,151,918 9,151,918 6,955,672 (2,196,246)

TveStment HEOME. v e e vrevener e eee e e 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,823,841 (176,159)

Education . 40,982,338 39,914,911 39,914,911 -

[0 T O O P 420,675 220,675 390,096 169,421
TOTAL REVENUES ... .ot i vin e 234691916 233,624 489 230,015,621 (3,608,868)
EXPENDITURES:

Current:

EXeCUBIVE. . oo i it er e e e e e e ea i 513,467 513,467 483,138 30,329

City Council... .o oo e e 994,431 300,283 226,934 73,349

LW, ottt iitverves e rrs e vmn e et e eae rae nreeee e 467,300 467,300 503,807 (36,507)

Persomnel... ... oo e e e s 187,429 217,429 216,118 1,311

[0 1,450,500 1,450,500 1,118,316 332,184

Probate COut.........coo e cvecviiaevre i ere ven v mre s 19,339 19,339 19,046 293

Municipal COut. .. ... e e e e 269,175 269,175 259,468 9,707

Board of Canvassers.......oovev i iniinnvrrree i eer s 227,207 227,207 212,921 14,286

City PIanming. .. ... vov e er ceecee e vne v e creceemin ot 369,407 369,407 363,229 6,178

Economic Development... .....oveveivirnsroscneens 345,917 345917 173,987 171,930

FINAIGE. .. v vvvvs cveorr e en emnaee e eaenr e cn ven b eas 4,599,198 4,739,198 4,500,031 ' 239,167

) £ OIS 25,085,861 25,265,861 25,181,412 84,449

INSPECHONS .. oevvervm e e cee e et i e e 1,212,125 1,212,125 953,611 258,514

PoliCe. .. coeaeet e e i e v e 20,221,844 20,471,844 20,391,816 80,028

PUBlIC WOTKS. oo vvriraesereeee e cee b en e vencrenan 13,762,802 13,856,950 13,686,856 170,094

Parks and recreation... ... ... .covvevivvieie s ver s s 2,161,209 2,161,209 2,114 610 46,599

Public UbFaries. .. ... oo v cevns e vinnre v v e 3,070,340 3,070,340 3,070,340 -

Community Gramts. .. ... veeveeverver o emmne vennee 140,500 140,500 140,500 -

EmIOT SEIVICES... .. ces e cev i e s arn v e aenane 2,963,110 2,963,110 2,931,862 31,248

Municipal Debt............ oo 8,750,370 8,750,370 8,738,387 11,983

Long-Term Debl.. ..o e 18,185,121 18,185,121 18,185,121 -

Boards and Commissions........cooviveviiirveniernn 22,010 22,010 19,417 2,593

Harbor Master... ....c. oo veeore oo e cmecnnrenveeeees 4,690 4,690 3,885 803

Rescue Funtd... ..o v e ver i vrnvrr vrr oo 3,266,500 3,266,500 1,582,080 1,684,420

BEducation.....o.ovvr v e irevve e e e v e 126,395,975 125,328,548 125,328,548 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ... e e e 234,685,827 233,618,400 230,405,440 3,212,960
QTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Issuance of debt...........ocovciiiei i 4,000,000 4,000,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE.......oo oo vve e 3 6,089 $ 6,089 3,610,181 3,604,002
FUND BALANCE - JULY 1, 2007... 00 cve o verven vereee 18,493,224
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2008... ... 0o orooeeeni § 22,103,405
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODFE ISLAND

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - SCHOOL UNRESTRICTED
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL WITH FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
REVENUES:

SEATE A, ov e o e eeeeee et e v e e e e eyt e v e e aas e e b $ 36,648,338 § 36,648,338 $ 35,636,308 $ {1,012,030)

Federal throtigh S1A18... ... ovvrvr ot e mr vri e e e e e e 1,900,000 1,960,000 1,840,548 {59,452)

33T T U 2,031,500 2,031,300 1,579,427 {452,073)

MISCEHANCOUS ... oo ceiit e e vee e e v te i ern vt e e e e 402,500 402,500 205,603 {166,897)
FOTAL REVENUES ... .. oo iv it v ar s i an res nnren rerans sees 40,982,338 40,982,338 39,351,886 (1,630,452}
EXPENDITURES:

SAIAEIES. v cvveitveeveseer rereeeaev e ain hr ves ereree i renree ey e s 81,776,650 82,690,683 84,323,356 (1,632,673}

Employee Benefifs. .. ..o i e 30,455,939 20,621,268 31,011,913 {1,3590,645)

Purchased SErVICES. .. .vocoeercvevrr i ririer e seeorr con crepen e nr s s 9,036,166 9,036,166 9,148 866 (312,700)

Supplies and materials., 4,354,053 4,337,053 4,529,841 (192,788

Capital ontlay............. 526,244 519,644 472,909 46,735

(07517 STV U RO PUR RPN 246,923 191,161 861,156 (669.995)
TOTAL BXPENDITURES. .. ... e s i s s e 126,395,975 126,395,975 130,548,041 (4,152.066)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES, ., (85,413,637) {85,413,637) (91,196,155) (5,782.518)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Transfers in City of CranstoR. .. .. voveveirii e e e e 85,413,637 85,413,637 85,413,637 -
NET CHANGE INFUND BALANCE. ... s $ - b - (5,782,518) $ (5,782,518)
FUND BALANCE - JULY L2007, ... e e e 598,588
FUND BALANCE -FUNE 30, 2008... oo v v e e e $_ (5,183.930)
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE iSLAND

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

:

POLICE AND FIRE PENSION PLAN

Annual
Year Required % of
Ended Contribution Actual ARC
June 30, {ARC) Contribution Contributed
2003 $ 24,945,408 $ 14,949,999 60%
2004 21,877,449 23,876,569 109%
2005 22,147,958 20,024,158 90%
2006 21,723,021 21,339,876 98%
2007 21,723,021 21,723,021 100%
2008 20,785,343 19,898,000 96%
PUBLIC SAFETY OPEB TRUST PLAN
Annual
Year - Required %of -
Ended Contribution Actual ARC
June 30, (ARC) Contribution Contributed
2007 $ 3,515,765 $ 3,692,176 105%
2008 3,606,418 3,515,766 97%
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION OPEB TRUST PLAN
Annual
Year Required % of
Ended Contribution Actual ARC
June 30, (ARC) Contribution Contributed
2008 $ 2,676,269 b 2,122,221 79%
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Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenues from specific taxes and other earmarked revenue sources
which by law are designated to finance particular functions or activities of government and which, therefore,
cannot be diverted to other uses.

Education - This fund accounts for education programs financed with grants from private parties and the federal
and state government, which are restricted as governed by the grant agreements.

Budget Stabilization - This fund was established to create a reserve to offset significant budget fluctuations in the
General Fund from year to year (ordinance specifies items that can be appropriated).

Hospital Stabilization - This fund was established to eliminate future deficits generated by the risks related to
being self-insured for health care.

Community Development Block Grant - This fund accounts for Federal Community Development Block Grants.

Public Service - This fund accounts for public safety activities financed by grants received from private parties
and federal and state agencies.

Restitution - To account for monies received in restitution of charges.

Cultural Services - This fund accounts for parks and recreation activities financed by grants received from
private parties and federal and state agencies.

Public Works - Insurance fund for snow and ice removal costs.

Excise Tax Phase-Out - This fund accounts for excise phase-out receipts received from the State of Rhode
Island.

Governmental Special Revenue Fund - This fund accounts for special grants and non-capital projects.

Economic Development Revolving Loan - This fund accounts for the repayment of principal and interest
payments from commercial loans funded by a grant from the Department of Housing and Urban Development.



Special Revenue Funds (Continued)

Capital Facilities Development Impact Fees - This fund accounts for fees charged by the City to real estate
developers. The fees are to be used for infrastructure capital assets.

WIA Job Development - This fund is a joint venture with the City of Providence to help unemployed and
underemployed individuals.

Senior Services - The following funds were established to account for the receipt and disbursement of funds for
specific activities sponsored by the Senior Citizens Center:

RSVP

Multipurpose Center

Adult Day Care

Senior Service Special Project

Capital Project Funds

The Capital Project Funds account for all resources used for the acquisition and/or construction of capital facilities
by the City, except for those financed by the Enterprise Funds,.

School Bond Fund - This fund accounts for the construction and improvements to school buildings, and for the
acquisition of equipment for the Cranston School District.

Police and Fire Bond Fund - This fund accounts for the construction and improvements to police and fire stations
and for the acquisition of police and fire equipment.

Public Building Bond Fund - This fund accounts for the construction and improvements of City buildings and the
acquisition of equipment for City Hall.

Recreation Bond Fund - This fund accounts for the construction and improvements of the City's recreation facilities
and for the acquisition of open space.

Highway Bond Fund - This fund accounts for construction and improvements to roads and highways within the

City.
Storm Drains Bond Fund - This fund accounts for the installation and repair of storm drains within the City.
Neighborhood Infrastructure Bond Fund - This fund accounts for neighborhood improvement projects.

Open Space Bond Fund - This fund accounts for the acquisition of open space.
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SCHEDULE 3
CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND

NONMAIJOR BUDGETARY FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET BASIS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

ORIGINALLY FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE
ADOPTED APPROVED (BUDGETARY WITH
BUDGET BUDGET BASIS) FINAL BUDGET
REVENUES:
Program Income $ 160,000 $ 160,000 $ 204,925 $ 44,925
Federal Grants 1,088,883 1,088,883 760,057 (328,826)
Total Revenues 1,248,883 1,248,883 964,982 (283,901)
EXPENDITURES:
Program Activities 1,248,883 1,248,883 876,379 372,504
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES b - 3 - $ 88,603 3 88,603
WORKFORCE INVESTMENT ACT JOB DEVELOPMENT -
ORIGINALLY FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE
ADOPTED APPROVED (BUDGETARY WITH
BUDGET BUDGET BASIS) FINAL BUDGET
REVENUES:
Program Income b 340,188 $ 386,098 $ 326,545 $ (59,553)
Investment Income 1,859 1,059
Total Revenues 340,188 386,098 327,604 (58.494)
EXPENDITURES:
Program Activities 340,188 386,098 384,161 (1,937}
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ - $ - $ (56,557) 3 {56,557}
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Fiduciary
Funds

Fiduciary funds are sued to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity for individuals, private
organizations or other governments.

Pension Trust Funds

A fiduciary fund type used to report resources that are required to be held in trust for the members and beneficiaries
of defined benefit pension plans.

Postemployment Healthcare Trust Fund

This fund is used to account for postemployment benefits for public safety employees.

Private-Purpose Trust Funds

A fiduciary trust fund type used to report all trust arrangements, other than those properly reported in pension trust
funds or investment trust funds, under which principal and income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other
governments.

Agency Funds

Agency funds were established to function as clearing mechanisms for cash resources which are collected and
disbursed to authorized recipients. The following is a list of Agency Funds included in this section:

Unclaimed Estates in Probate - This fund was established to account for unclaimed estates that are in probate.

Performance Bonds - This fund was established to account for funds set aside to pay land developers who perform
services for the City.

Student Activity Funds - This fund was established to account for the receipt and disbursement of school student
activity programs.



COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

SCHEDULE 4

JUNE 30, 2008
TOTAL
PENSION AND
OTHER POST- QOTHER POST-
EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYMENT
PENSION BENEFITS BENEFITS
TRUST TRUST TRUST AGENCY
FUNDS FUNE FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 725,634 3 257,121 982,755 $ 1,543,595
Tnvestments:
Real Estate Investment Trust 2104939 2,164,939
Equity Mutual Fands 26,995,896 26,995,896
Fixed income Endex Murtual Fund 10,818,185 10,818,183
Bond Mutual Funds 10,316,127 10,316,127
Fotal Investments 50,235,147 50,235,147
Due from other funds 275,669 275,669
TOTAL ASSETS 50,960,781 532 740 31,493 571 1,543,593
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 27,245 27,245
Peposits held in custody for others - 1,543,595
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 27245 27.245 1,543,595
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION AND OPEB
BENEFITS AND OTHER PURPOSES $ 56,960,781 3 505,545 51,466.326 $ -
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SCHEDULE 5

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN PENSION AND OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

TOTAL
PENSION AND
OTHER POST- OTHER POST-
EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYMENT
PENSION BENEFITS BENEFITS
TRUST TRUST TRUST
FUNDS FUND FUNDS
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Employer contributions § 19,889,000 8 3,515,766 23,404,766
Plan member contributions 667,464 173,612 841,076
Total contributions 20,556,464 3,689,378 24,245,842
Investment income (loss):
Interest and dividends 66,483 11,270 71,753
Net depreciation in the fair value of investments (2,321,479) (2,321,479
Total investment income (loss) (2,254,996) 11,270 (2,243,726)
TOTAL ADDITIONS 18,301,468 3,700,648 22,002,116
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits 18,250,257 3,305,013 21,555,270
Administration expenses 462,132 17,760 479,892
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 18,712,389 3,322,773 22,035,162
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (410,921 377,875 (33,046)
NET ASSETS - JULY 1, 2007 51,371,702 127,670 51,499,372
NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2008 3 50,960,781 $ 505,545 51,466,326
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AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

SCHEDULE 6

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, 2007 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 2008
ASSETS
CASH:
Unclaimed estates in probate $ 144,957 301 $ 17,481 $ 127,777
Performance bonds 463,091 803,466 364,132 902,425
Student activity funds 602,296 1,838,670 1,927,573 513,393
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,210,344 2,642,437 $ 2,309,186 $ 1,543,595
LIABILITIES
DPEPOSITS HELD IN CUSTODY FOR OTHERS:
Unclaimed estates in probate % 144,957 301 $ 17,481 $ 127,777
Performance bonds 463,091 803,466 364,132 902,425
Student activity funds 602,296 1,838,670 1,927,573 513,393
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 1,210,344 2642 437 $ 2,309,186 3 1,543,595
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Operation of
Governmental
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CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

SCHEDULE 8

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, JUNE 30,
2006 ADDITIONS RETIREMENTS 2007
General government...................co.ooo $ 162,279.329 $ 5746019 § 351,740 $ 167,673,608
Public safety.......oovvrvmimroreaeereeeneenen 9,644,645 1,858,293 340,247 11,162,691
FPublicworks.........cocooiiiininn 4,061,466 1,176,056 815,222 4,422,300
Education.........ocooivniricoiiimneneeas 1,857,698 5,200,483 98,475 6,959,706
Parks and recreation..............oooie 1,625,785 1,625,785
Public libraries.......cooveevriemcreinin 3,605,600 3,605,000
Senbor Services. ..o e 468,900 468,900
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS ..........oovvene $ 183,542,823 % 13,980,851 $§ 1,605,684 $ 195917990
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Statistical
Section

This part of the City’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the City’s overall financial health.

CONTENTS

FINANCIAL TRENDS (TABLES 1 - 4)

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s financial performance
and well-being have changed over time.

REVENUE CAPACITY (TABLES S - 7)

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant local revenue source,
the property tax.

DEBT CAPACITY (TABLES8-11)

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s current levels of
outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION (TABLES 12 - 13)

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment
within which the City’s financial activities take place.

OPERATING INFORMATION (TABLES 14 - 16}

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in
the City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial reports for the relevant year.
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RATIOS OF GENERAL DEBT OUTSTANDING

TABLE 9

LAST TEN YEARS
{(UNAUDITED)
GENERAL DEBT OUTSTANDING
PERCENTAGE OF
YEAR GENERAL ACTUAL TAXABLE DEBT
ENDED OBLIGATION CAPITAL VALUE OF PER
JUNE 30 BONDS LEASES TOTAL PROPERTY CAPITA
1999 3 42,287,000 $ 1,520,000 $ 43,807,000 1.11% 584
2000 53,716,000 1,318,000 55,034,000 1.36% 724
2001 50,853,542 7,106,668 57,960,210 1.42% 730
2002 46,098,154 7,459,150 33,557,304 1.28% 669
2003 42,625,156 7,065,400 49,090,556 1.14% 606
2004 66,360,000 6,202,345 72,562,345 1.24% 839
2005 63,340,000 5,322,425 68,662,425 1.16% 837
2006 83,685,000 4,436,836 88,121,836 1L47% 1,080
2007 79,465,000 3,842,828 83,307,828 1.39% 1,022
2008 §7,875,000 3,264,313 91,139,313 1.52% 1,119
NOTE: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
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TABLE 10

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

FUNE 30, 2008

(UNAUDITED)
Assessed value 8 9,162,442 964
Less: exemptions (532,619,312)
NET TOTAL TAXABLE ASSESSED VALUE 3 8,629,823,652
Debt limit - 3 percent of total assessed value 3 258,894,710
Amount of debt applicable to debt limit:

Total bonded debt -
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN 3 258,894,710

Note:  The City has no debt issues outstanding under the Maximum Aggregate
Indebtedness provision (3% Debt Limit) - Rhode Island General Law 45-12-2.
All other City debt has been incurred through special statutory authority which
consists of approval by the legislature and voter referendnm.

The State Legislature may by special act permit the City to incur indebtedness

in excess of the three percent (3%) limit in accordance with Rhode Island General
Law 45-12-11. The City of Cranston has never requested authorization under the
Authority for the issuance of Indebtedness Excess - Rhode Istand General Law
45-12-11.
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TABLE 11

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

LAST TEN YEARS
YEAR NET DEBT LEGAL

ENDED DEBT APPLICABLE DEBT

JUNE 30 LIMIT TO LIMIT MARGIN
199% $ 93,083,678 $ - $ 93,088,678
2000 93,672,789 - 93,672,789
2001 93,797,178 - 93,797,178
2002 95,374,621 - 95,374,621
2003 100,615,221 - 100,615,221
2004 166,419,556 - 166,419,556
2005 165,502,160 - 165,502,160
2006 168,212,526 - 168,212,526
2007 257,080,899 ' ‘ - ' 257,080,899
2008 258,894,710 - 258,894,710
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FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST FIVE YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

TABLE 14

FUNCTION / PROGRAM

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30

2008

2007

2006 2005

2004

GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Mayor...
City Councﬂ

Information Technology

Department of Personnel...

City Clerk........................
Probate Courl...... covvrvvvvisciime e eee s
Municipal Court... ... oo v inn e

Board of Canvassers. ..
City Planning ...

Econontic Development

Finance ..

Division of Accountmg & Control

Division of Assessment ..

Divison of Contracts & Purchasmg
Division of Treasury & Collection ..

POLICE:

L0 F (oot S SUU U NP U

Animal Control.....ocoieei e

FIRE:

CHIBE ... v e e e e st s e
Pniformed... ..o o vvnves v ver et e i
CHVITIATES v e eeeee ver eee cevseeear ere vervee cen s

INSPECTIONS... .ot v e

PUBLIC WORKS:
Administration. .. ...

Highway. .. coovee v e e tinner e e

Fleet Management... ... .. oo van ronmvrens
Traffic Saftey... ..o e v iee e
PARKS AND RECREATION......ceoviiiin s
PUBLICLIBRARIES.......c oo
SENIOR SERVICES....cooiiii i e v
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT................

EDUCATION. ..ot st i e

SOURCE: City Budget

~) B WD W e B WO L= O B G0N

153
30

200

16

41

26
10

21

32

32

1,486

Eh N VLR N S IR e SR i " B B S |

153
30

200

13

41

26
10

21

32

32

1,546

] S W R RN B D W0
] LA D BN TR G W D e SR

151 150
30 32

200 201

13 12

41 39
26 26
10 10

21 22
32 32

32 32

10 3!

1,633 1,626

LA A e B B LA G LR o D R Y T

149
30

i
201

12

39
26
10

22
32

32

11

1.669

2,163

2,223

2,310 2,304

2,344
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TABLE 15

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST FIVE YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
FISCAL YEAR ENDEL RINE 30
FUNCTION / PROGRAM 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
GOVERNMENTAL, IVITIES
PUBLIC SAFETY:
Fire:
Total incidents,....... 13,991 13,980 13,872 12,144 12,019
Rescue/medical calls... 9,568 10,148 10,706 10,973 10,721
Rescue/mon-medical calls... ..o veiis rnvemvennen s 4,423 3,832 1,166 1,171 1,298
Police:
Number of callg... ...coocovicviiiiiinn e N/A NA NIA N/A N/A
‘Total 911 calls received N/A WA WA N/A N/A
Formal investigations. ... .o vev vee e iiivin v iname e N/A NA NA N/A N/A
TOWN CLERK:
Number of documents recorded... ...l N/A NIA N/A NA N/A
BEALTH AND WELFARE:
Number of food service facilities inspoctions. .. . ... N/A NA NA N/A NA
New homes built. ... oo oo e NA NA NIA N/A N/A
LAND USE:
Total suhdivisions approved. ... oo cnrennes N/A NIA N/A N/A © N/A
Total commereial applications approved............ NA NA N/A N/A N/A
BUILDING:
Residential permits issued... oo v ieemi e 36 48 73 150 147
Commercial permits issued ... oo 12 19 19 B i
Total PEtmHe_.. ovvvv et rrerermes cerees i i e 48 67 92 158 157
PUBLIC WORKS:
Highway departuent
Streets (BIFIES)} vvvcvvaes vieven ime vrme vev s ne b e
Paved Town reads.. 315 315 315 3:3 313
Paved State roads... 64 64 : 64 64
Private r0ads......cv v ves irscerame see et en senine N/A NA N/A N/A N/A
Reoads under construction (maintained
By TOWE Cou e vervme v eee ven i ee s v N/A NA N/A NA N/A
Sidewalks (miles) ..............0 N/A WA N/A N/A N/A
Water department
Water mains (nIles}... .oovvv o cemiane e
Fire Bygrants... oo oo cesvenveeen vesss s sssnarenn 1,903 1,903 1,914 2,156 1,850
Storage capacity
{thousands of gallons)..........coeerimiviininns N/A N/A NA N/A N/A
EDUCATION:
Enrollment:
High School Grades 9-12.. 3,469 3,657 3,646 3,633 3,514
Middle School Grades 6-8.... . 2,620 2,627 2,672 2,707 2,764
Elementary Schools Grades -5l 4,629 4,627 4614 4,159 4,944

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

SOURCES: Various City Deparhents
(1) Information not available due to the constriction and consolidation of sckools and redated grade levels,

N/A - Information not available
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CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

TABLE 16

LAST FIVE YEARS
{(UNAUDITED)
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30
FUNCTION / PROGRAM 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
PARKS AND RECREATION:
Acreage (includes ali open space)
Parks and Public Squares 11 1 10 10 10
Marinas... 3 3 3 3 3
Playgmunds... 35 35 35 35 35
Walking tracks...... 8 8 7 7 7
Basketball courts... . 21 21 21 21 17
Tenmnis courts... ...ov v e e 24 24 24 24 24
Rasebal! fields.... 27 27 27 27 27
Sofiball fields..... 11 11 3 1t 11
Other fields... 22 22 22 22 22
Iee Rink... Z 2 i i I
StadlumandFlelc! House....‘...‘............... 1 1 1 1 1
PUBLIC SAFETY:

Fire Stations 6 6 6 6 6
Fire alarm boxes... ... .o coe e vnvrisons e s 149 149 149 139 146
Fire BYArants. .. .., coecor ee vrevvneren e v svs e 1,903 1,903 1,914 2,156 1,850

Police department:

Stations... . 4 4 4 4 4
AnlmalControlBu:]dmg..........~........-....... 1 1 1 1 1
PUBLIC WORKS:

Highway department:

Streets iles)... o vervve i er e N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Sidewalks (miles)... ..o oo e N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
PUBLIC LIBRARIES:

Number of branches 6 6 6 6 6
EDUCATION:

Number of High Schools... ......... ..o 2 2 2 2 2

Number of Middle Scheols............... 3 3 3 3 3

Number of Elementary Schools... 17 17 18 i9 19

Number of Charter Schools. .. ‘e i 1 1 1 i

Number of Aduit Education Bmldmgs 1 1 1 1 1

SENIOR SERVICES:
Senior Citizens Center... ... oo vevee e 1 i 1 1 i
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT:
Number of loans issued...... oo oo oevivimevn e N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
BUSINESS TYPL ACTIVITIES
SEWER FUND
Sewer mains {miles)... - N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Treatment capacity {thousands of gallons). - N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Sewerage Dlsposal Plant... RPN I 1 1 1 3
Pumping Stations... 22 22 22 22 22

SOURCES: Various Town Departments

N/A - Information not available
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